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Year ended 30 June
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
(DU | e st

(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars)

—  EEH

1,787 1,654 1,579 1,818 1,438
Government Subventions

B R R

1,483 1,367 1,295 1,299 1,211
Tuition, Programme and Other Fees

FE R FRERA

329 (600) 871 47 182
Interest and Net Investment Income/(Loss)
AR EERE

113 189 246 307 81

Donations and Benefactions

e T 2 e A\

Auxiliary Services Income

242 272 237 183 239

SN N

Other Income

35 29 29 28 34

SHEYH (HEGEYHRE)
Number of Students (UGC-funded Programmes)

IN §

8,085 8,000 7,994 7,678 7,689
Headcount

SATEAR N

i i 7,831 7,705 7,685 7,374 7,383
Full-time Equivalent

BAWH (HERE)

Number of Students (Self-financed Programmes)

IN {

20,238 22,359 19,144 24,096 25,903
Headcount

Tk EL N (S 2 H )

3,200 3,162 3,124 3,215 3,186
Number of Staff (Full-time Equivalent)

FBE (K 2 H 3R ) (oo
BER b B () 42,100 42,100 42,100 42,100 42,100
Tuition Fees Per Annum (UGC-funded Full-time Programmes) ($)
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B 2.3%

C 32%

D 2.9%

E 8.8%
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Income (Expressed in millions of Hong Kong Dollars)

A @ 1,806.2 B

Government Subventions

B O 14833 2 - LIl

Tuition, Programme and Other Fees

C @ 3293 FBARFBRERA

Interest and Net Investment Income

D @ 114.8 HEKEZIEM

Donations and Benefactions

E @ 251.7 BIERBERA

Auxiliary Services Income

F @ 455 HugA

Other Income

X ormm gt
Expenditure (Expressed in millions of Hong Kong Dollars)

A @ 2,127.8 HERBH

Teaching and Research

82.5 [EEM
Library

113.6 BB

Central Computing Facilities

101.3 b2 i

Other Academic Services

308.9 ABLRE B

Management and General

542.8 Fed A B P Z

Premises and Related Expenses

219.5 Bk R — B E g

Students and General Education Services

23.6 JLMEE)
Other Activities

0000000
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The University

B 37.2%

WO (piete v i at)
Income (Expressed in millions of Hong Kong Dollars) 4
A @ 1,787.1 BRFEEK <
Government Subventions S
S
B O 1,483.3 2 - KA E &
Tuition, Programme and Other Fees ~
C @ 3291 FIBRFBREUA = 5
Interest and Net Investment Income o
D @ 1128 HHEKEFHM &
Donations and Benefactions f(j
E @ 2422 BIERERA e
Auxiliary Services Income _‘,E
F @ 354 HfgA 3
Other Income =
S
@]

3 ormem )
Expenditure (Expressed in millions of Hong Kong Dollars)

A @ 2,117.5 LR

A 60.9%

Teaching and Research

82.5 [EEM
Library

113.6 BB

Central Computing Facilities

104.9 LB s

Other Academic Services

306.7 EEE—MBSLH

Management and General

517.5 Hed BA B P32

Premises and Related Expenses

F 14.9%

G 6.3%

H 04% G 219.5 B4 K —IEE M
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Overview

Aspiring to be a leading research-led liberal arts University
in Asia, Hong Kong Baptist University (the University)
is committed to conducting world-leading research and
academic collaborations that extend the frontiers of
knowledge, address global challenges and benefit the

community at home and abroad.

With its core strengths in health and drug discovery, creative
arts, and Al and data analytics, the University is actively
involved in contributing to the InnoLife Healthtech Hub
proposed in the 2021 Policy Address, grooming local
talents and showcasing Hong Kong’s soft power proposed
in the 2022 Policy Address, as well as the innovation
and technology hub envisioned in the National 14% Five-
Year Plan for Hong Kong and the Greater Bay Area. The
University is dedicated to promoting transdisciplinary
research and education across different disciplines to support

these initiatives and foster collaboration and innovation.

In 2022-23, the University has further demonstrated its
unwavering commitment to promoting transdisciplinary
research through various groundbreaking projects. These
include the establishment of Future Cinema Systems: Next-
Generation Art Technologies, the launch of the JC STEM
Lab of ChemProbes, and the Jockey Club Creative Media

and Innovation Studio.

In the academic year 2022-23, the University launched four
specially designed transdisciplinary programmes with the
goal of nurturing future-ready students. These programmes
center around the domains of arts and culture, health and
social well-being, and are supported by the integration
of science and technology. The University’s aim is to
prepare students with the necessary skills and knowledge
to contribute to the development of a diverse ecosystem in

Hong Kong, the Greater Bay Area, and beyond.

Additionally, as the appointed operator of Hong Kong’s first
Chinese Medicine Hospital, the University has been working
closely with the government of the HKSAR (Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region) in establishing the hospital,
which is planned to open in 2025.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Overall Operation Results and Financial
Position

For the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group recorded a
surplus of $611.0 million (2021-22: deficit of $402.2 million)
while the University had a surplus of $511.0 million (2021-
22: deficit of $421.6 million). The net assets of the Group
rose by 10% to $6,275.6 million (2021-22: $5,700.6 million)
while those of the University increased by 9.4% to $5,929.6
million (2021-22: $5,418.6 million) as at 30 June 2023.

Total income of the University for the year ended 30 June
2023 increased by $1,079.2 million to $3,989.9 million
(2021-22: $2,910.7 million). The increase was mainly
attributable to a rise in Interest and Net Investment Income by
$929.3 million as a result of the rebound in global financial
markets, an increase of $133.1 million in Government
Subventions, a rise of $115.9 million in Tuition, Programme
and Other Fees, partly offset by a decrease of $76.1 million
in Donations and Benefactions and a decrease of $29.7

million in Auxiliary Services Income.

The increase in Government Subventions for 2022-23 was
the result of higher block grants and realization of deferred
income during the year from the earmarked grants received
in previous years. The increase in Tuition, Programme and
Other Fees was mainly due to increased student enrolment
in self-financed programmes and higher tuition fees in 2022-
23. The drop in Donations and Benefactions was mainly
attributable to less donations and research matching grants
incomes were recognized in 2022-23 to the extent of the
related expenditure incurred during the year. The lower
Auxiliary Services Income was attributable to the reduction
of the service fees from a joint venture and an affiliated

company under the new arrangement.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Total expenditure of the University was $3,479.0 million for
2022-23 (2021-22: $3,332.2 million). The increase of $146.8
million in total expenditure was mainly attributable to an
increase of $125.2 million in the costs for Teaching, Learning
and Research and an increase of $21.6 million in those for
Institutional Support. Total staff costs, which accounted
for 62% of the total expenditure, increased slightly by $8.6
million or 0.4% to $2,153.3 million in 2022-23 (2021-22:
$2,144.7 million) mainly due to pay-trend adjustments during
the year.

Teaching, Learning and Research costs of the University
increased by $125.2 million to $2,418.4 million (2021-22:
$2,293.2 million) mainly due to an increased number of staff
recruited under the Talent 100+ / six interdisciplinary labs
initiative, higher spending for some large research projects

and an increase in research studentships during the year.

Institutional Support costs of the University increased by
$21.6 million to $1,060.6 million (2021-22: $1,039.0 million)
due to more expenses incurred for students and general
education services as a result of increased externship costs
supported by Anti-Epidemic Fund and higher level of student

activities being arranged to enhance student experience.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University



BH B

KE2NHEABE KW 1£2022-234F
JE o B AEE 1 — T T e S e I ) 2
il B 5 T A5 v R IR R A B R
BT A KR R B G 83,540 8
TG o MR BHT RN 2 Bl 4 R A K I A
RHEIEH o KB SE A 2 19 0 A7 1 TR 2R
BiR & T REMBHLEHE > WHRE
s o9 — T A Hb K B g — T A KB
T o 62 B SR RET R AR B R 4 ) (R

RS MEAEER - ZERRS
PR R S AR R R AT B
G B Kt AU BB DA R 4R
HHHMENTR - KAERERAERAR
R EAE N TR AR - EAISHE - HE
B R SRR > W SR E A RITR
AHCBRBEAE > #56 THHEEANE
RF T ek N AR 5 DA 17 o5 3t K
B 3 E o A TE B A AT A
T S B A R T B B I R AR o

EEEESGREGTES (ERGEE
fRatke) GO [FEH G LTS AR
HoE ERXML » DU 2R
PR THREHER D BER TR > I
KB R A R R R - 5%
BB BOD BB T 1 TR
FF 7 M S ) - D e R il 40 M e AL
BFEROLEE Y a2 R EHA 2 BIZ AR
W e PRAm A - DLR A B SO B
Wt o A BT AR B R R T
R PG T HAL S IR < BAEEHT
w5 K B TR H A m el R AR
s B o Sl A B 8 AL oI TR K 2 B
TRETAREMEN -

2022-23  HA#5#H Financial Report

Education Services

With full commitment to education and research, in 2022-23,
a novel, farsighted art-tech project led by the University was
awarded HK$35.4 million in funding from the Innovation and
Technology Support Programme under the Innovation and
Technology Commission (ITC) of the HKSAR Government.
This is the art-tech project funded by ITC with the largest
approved amount. The two-year “Future Cinema Systems:
Next-Generation Art Technologies” project is being led by
the University in collaboration with another local university
in Hong Kong and an overseas university in Switzerland. It
is a pioneering attempt to develop and construct a “Future
Cinema System” (FCS), an integrated system for artists and
the creative industries to meet the growing demand for new
interactive and immersive forms of cultural experience, as
well as entertainment and education. Powered by advanced
technologies, including artificial intelligence, computer
vision, deep learning and virtual reality, the FCS comprises
three-dimensional interactive and immersive visualisation
environments that integrate all forms of real-time and pre-
recorded content with a broad range of wearable sensors and
biometric devices. This vanguard projects opens the door
to boundless applications in the arts, creative industries and

other disciplines.

With the funding support of The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust (HKJCCT), the “JC STEM Lab of
ChemProbes” has been established to foster transdisciplinary
research into the development of new molecular probes as
diagnostic imaging tools and translate them so that they
can be utilised in biomedical or clinical applications. The
laboratory will focus on the development of rare-earth-
based molecular probes as bio-imaging agents for use in
optical imaging for pre-clinical cellular and tissue studies.
The probes could potentially be widely utilised in magnetic
resonance imaging and in various diagnostic and optical
imaging protocols. It is hoped that they will eventually be
translated for use in human applications in collaboration with
partners in academia and industry. The development and
eventual commercialisation of new imaging and diagnostic
tools can assist in advancing the diagnosis of diseases and
help simplify or alleviate certain undesirable side effects with

current clinical diagnostic protocols.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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The University was awarded with over $7.2 million
research funding from Theme-based Research Scheme of
the Research Grants Council (RGC) for a one-year project
titled “Dysregulated Host — Gut Microbiota Co-Metabolism
in Metabolic Associated Fatty Liver Disease”. Led by the
University, the cross-institutional collaborative research team
included researchers from other local universities. Metabolic
associated fatty liver disease coexists and acts synergistically
with type two diabetes mellitus to increase the adverse
clinical outcomes, with substantial public health burdens
worldwide. The development of diagnostic technologies
facilitated by the project will enable efficient screening and
evaluation of patients, leading to more effective clinical
interventions.

The University hosted the 10" Biennial International
Association for Chinese Management Research (IACMR)
Conference in June 2023. TACMR is an academic
organisation that serves scholars, students, managers and
consultants and has been recognised as an authoritative
world-class academic research organisation in the area of
Chinese management. The Conference gathered nearly 2,000
scholars and experts from around the world to share the latest
research and education excellence on Chinese management
and organisations under continuous change in globalisation.

Despite the challenges posed by ongoing global events and
residual impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic, the Beijing
Normal University — Hong Kong Baptist University United
International College (BNU-HKBU UIC) demonstrated
remarkable resilience and commitment to strengthening its
mission through strong financial management. Attributable
to strong student enrolment across various academic
programmes as well as delayed operational spending due to
periodic COVID-19 outbreaks in the first half of the financial
year, BNU-HKBU UIC reported a net surplus of RMB91.6
million for the year ended 30 June 2023.

To better position for the post-pandemic era, BNU-HKBU
UIC has allocated significant resources towards capital
expenditure in building and infrastructure projects, primarily
the Phase II Campus Construction Project for Residential
Hall Cluster. Two out of the six buildings have already been
put into use, with the remaining four buildings expected
to be completed in August 2023. The Phase II Campus
Construction Project will remain as a top priority for BNU-
HKBU UIC in the coming years. Moving forward, BNU-
HKBU UIC aims to play an important role for the University
in supporting the development of the Greater Bay Area by
providing best in-class education and talent cultivation.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Community Services

In 2022-23, a total of 10 Chinese medicine clinics were
operated by the University. Since the inception of these
clinics, the cumulative number of patient visits has reached
almost three million. The Lui Seng Chun Chinese medicine
clinic in Mong Kok continues to offer free consultations and
Chinese medicine, subject to a daily quota, to recipients of

the Comprehensive Social Security Assistance Scheme.

With funding from HKJCCT, the University has launched a
three-year “Jockey Club Mus-Fit for Health Project” (Mus-
Health), which designed a series of exercises to train the
muscle strength, endurance, balance and flexibility of 5,000
elderly people. The project helped them develop regular
exercise habits for staying healthy and active. Through
training ambassadors and health leaders, Mus-Health will
encourage elderly people to exercise to increase muscle mass
and promote a healthy lifestyle. The project team will also
promote Mus-Health to different age groups in society and
create awareness of the importance of exercise important

through seminars, competitions, and promotional trucks.

With funding support from the Everbright Group via Hong
Kong Community Anti-Coronavirus Link, the University’s
School of Chinese Medicine has launched the “Everbright
Care * Long COVID Chinese Medicine Rehabilitation
Programme” to help people who suffer from the after-
effects of COVID-19 (commonly known as “long COVID”).
Under the programme, the University’s Chinese medicine
practitioners will provide a free “long COVID” consultation
and Chinese medicine to elderly people who were
hospitalised due to COVID-19 and have since recovered.
Many recovered patients have long COVID symptoms such as
cough, shortness of breath, insomnia, hair loss, skin irritation
and fatigue. Chinese medicine’s contribution to treating
COVID-19 has been recognised by the community. The
School of Chinese Medicine will further strengthen the role
of Chinese medicine in the fight against the pandemic and
relieve the symptoms encountered by recovering patients,

thus improving their quality of life.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Other Operations

The University has been focusing on the translation of
traditional Chinese medicinal wisdom into innovative and
effective treatments and pharmaceutical products using cutting-
edge technology, such as big data and Al Established in 2020,
the Centre for Chinese Herbal Medicine Drug Development
(CDD), funded by the Innovation and Technology Commission,
has made significant progress in developing novel Chinese
medicine for treating chronic constipation. With its success
in the Investigational New Drug (IND) application to the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA), CDD has been
authorised, in April 2023, to conduct a phase I clinical trial of a
new drug candidate. This is the first time that a new botanical
drug candidate developed in Hong Kong was authorised to
conduct a clinical trial in the United States. The novel drug
candidate is developed by combining a traditional herbal
formulation and advanced technologies, with research and
manufacturing conducted in compliance with international
standards. FDA’s authorisation to conduct a clinical trial for
this new drug candidate reflects the University’s capabilities
in and dedication to promoting the standardisation and
internationalisation of Chinese medicine. The clinical trial
will also provide the University with invaluable experience
in conducting clinical trials at Hong Kong’s first Chinese

Medicine Hospital in the near future.

The University and the Hong Kong Applied Science
and Technology Research Institute (ASTRI) signed a
Memorandum of Understanding on “Fostering University
Cooperation in Technology Transfer” in September 2022 to
jointly create a new era of smart living and cross-disciplinary
technological development. Under the agreement, the
University and ASTRI will enhance collaborative research
and promote the transfer and commercialisation of technology
results. The extended cooperation covers the areas of smart
traditional Chinese medicine service system, pharmaceutical
research and development, art tech, and fintech, as well
as interdisciplinary research and its application, so as to
promote technology innovation and transfer. The University
and its affiliated institutions will jointly develop with ASTRI
a number of cooperation models, including cutting-edge
technologies such as Al and big data analysis, as well as

intellectual property management and commercialisation.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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The University continued to shine at the Geneva International
Exhibition of Inventions 2023. Researchers of the University
won three gold medals and one silver medal. In addition,
our Associate Professor of the Department of Physics was
bestowed with the prestigious Chen Ning Yang Award 2022
for his pioneering investigation into novel Hermitian and

non-Hermitian topological phases in wave system.
Fundraising Efforts

In 2022-23, the University successfully received a total cash
of $404.4 million (2021-22: $564.1 million) in donations,
higher than the donation income recognised in the year, of
which the University submitted applications for matching
grants totalling $275.2 million (2021-22: $394 million), with
$137.7 million (2021-22: $198 million) received through
the Research Matching Grant Scheme (RMGS). Looking
forward, the University will continue to build research
collaborations with industrial partners to generate research
funding for matching under the RMGS, and to increase
fundraising efforts in supporting various initiatives under
its Institutional Strategic Plan (ISP), including research,
endowed professorships and scholarships for students’

exchange and service-learning experiences.

On behalf of the University, I would like to extend my
deepest gratitude and heartfelt appreciation to our generous
donors and dedicated supporters. Your unwavering support
has been instrumental in contributing to the remarkable
achievements of the University’s ISP, enabling the University
to pursue its mission of advancing knowledge, fostering
innovation, collaboration with world-class researchers and

enabling sustainable academic excellence.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Investments

The University’s investment funds consist of (i) Long-term
Fund (LTF) which is not required to meet the University’s
short-term operational cashflow needs; (ii) Short-term Fund
(STF) for meeting the University’s short-term operational
cashflow needs; and (iii) Hostel Development Fund (HDF)
designated for the construction of the hostel portion of the

new Jockey Club Campus of Creativity (JC3).

Despite the challenges faced by the global economy,
including ongoing geopolitical risks associated with the
Russia-Ukraine war, rising inflation and interest rates, and
the unprecedented impact of the post-COVID-19 pandemic,
the University has taken proactive steps to mitigate
potential investment risks and position itself for a long-
term sustainable growth. By carefully assessing market
conditions and making timely strategic decisions, the LTF
has demonstrated resilience and adaptability by delivering
a solid return of 5.6% for the year ended 30 June 2023. The
return was mainly driven by strong performance in global

equities and alternative investments.

Moving forward, the University’s LTF will continue to focus
on a diversified investment strategy that seeks opportunities
in both traditional and alternative asset classes, with a focus
on generating a sustainable long-term return. The LTF’s
commitment to environmental, social, and governance
considerations in its investment decisions reflects the
University’s values and its commitment to responsible
investing. By maintaining a disciplined and forward-looking
approach to investing, the University is well-positioned
to navigate the challenges and uncertainties of the global

economy and continue to advance its mission.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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The University’s commitment in STF is optimising
investment returns while ensuring sufficient working
capital to meet the operational cash flow requirement. As
the University progresses with the construction project of
the JC3, it has been utilising the HDF grant with a smooth
progression. The HDF grant was placed in bank deposits
to gain the flexibility for supporting the construction cost
payment during the year, resulting in an interest income
of HK$27.1 million for 2022-23. Since its inception, the
HDF grant had a total cumulative investment gain of $168.9

million.

With the global economy continuing to evolve and face new
challenges, the University remains committed to maintaining
a strong financial position and making strategic investment
decisions to enhance its ability to navigate the challenges

ahead to generate sustainable long-term returns.
Capital Projects

As part of the core elements in implementing the University’s
strategic priorities set out in its ISP, the construction of the
JC3, supported by the generous donation from HKJCCT
and numerous donors, has been topping out and is due to be
completed in 2024. The new campus will house the Jockey
Club Creative Hub, which features state-of-the-arts facilities
for music, film, television, video games and other creative
disciplines. The hub would provide teaching, learning and
research space, housing the University’s Academy of Music
and the Creative Media and Practice Cluster. The JC? will
enable the University to offer the best student experience and

achieve research excellence.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Under the Jockey Club Multiple Pathways Initiative —
CLAP-TECH Pathway, a visionary tripartite partnership
that nurtures young talent for the information technology
and creative media sectors by providing an alternative
learning pathway within mainstream education. Located
on the second floor of Lee Shau Kee Communication and
Visual Arts Building, the Jockey Club Creative Media
and Innovation Studio, a studio well-equipped with
state-of-the-art facilities for content creation, was
established as an innovative platform for hybrid learning
and teaching in game design, animation and film production.
The Studio strives to set a benchmark for teaching and
learning, demonstrating the University’s commitment to the

development of its art-tech capabilities.

With an aim to provide world-class facilities and systems
to its students and staff enhancing their user experience
and operational efficiency, the University is committed to
continual improvements to its digital infrastructure. A series

of digital transformation projects are in progress.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University

16



J 2

RER T o — A T B A R S B AL B A
> CEAMZ RIHRKERGT G4 -
— B RACEE ~ BFFE ~ B S B ST A
S A BB B R A R R 4
o HEB B R BH F AR o KA
By R A B R e S R Y B AE
B BEAFRBMOAA - A E L
EVEE 3 L &SI P EN TR ik
J& > BONHEE R R B IR - R HAR L

B SR -

KERMBOTFRES) - AR REUT &
INEIRE SR NG [ B A TAT
VR R o KB T R 2 8L 3 Bt 3R TH
AR R B I A R T S R
B BB E AR ENR AR
SR AL - 5 F AT RS B BLIT R

A 5 FE 1S & AL E AL R 39 A > T8 A
PRI BRI BUIREERE > IR F AR R A
P R AL [ Y S o B A R TE B K
o 10 BRI ) F SRR o SR R A 7 vl o
5 PG M S R SCAL AU R L B B -
FRAIRRMAL > Bt -

55 1 7 R 4 0 T
W KRB - A A
SBHHS VEOR - bR ACHR R T
RAE -

i
BEERm 4+
20234 10H10H

2022-23  HA#5#H Financial Report

Looking Ahead

To further strengthen the collaboration with higher
institutions in the Mainland, the University has signed
agreements with leading Mainland universities to further
deepen in areas such as teaching and learning, research, as
well as academic and student exchange, with the ultimate aim
of opening a new chapter for promoting novel development
in education for the nation. The University has endeavoured
to deepen its collaboration and integration with the Mainland
in the area of higher education to nurture talent, innovators
and entrepreneurs of different disciplines, and to advance
the frontiers of professional knowledge and cutting-edge
technologies with an aim to fuel the nation’s remarkable

socioeconomic growth in the future.

To strengthen its research capacity, the University has
recruited several internationally renowned scholars under
the Global STEM Professorship Scheme supported by
the HKSAR Government. Benefiting from the scholars’
long-established connections with world-class overseas
institutions/universities and global industry, the University
is building a community of creative and talented scientists to

work together in interdisciplinary research.

We look forward to the completion of JC? which will stand as
a towering icon of creative education and also an exemplary
model of new living-learning communities of the future. The
new campus will support the Central Government’s vision of
developing Hong Kong into an East-meets-West centre for
international cultural exchange, as outlined in the National
14" Five-Year Plan, to nurture talents for creative arts and to

the betterment of our society.

In light of the challenging economic outlook and volatile
market conditions, the University will heighten its vigilance
in monitoring investment portfolios and managing financial
resources to support the long-term sustainability and growth
of the University.

Ms. Rosanna Y.T. Choi
Treasurer
10 October 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE COUNCIL OF HONG KONG BAPTIST
UNIVERSITY

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hong Kong Baptist University (“the University”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 24
to 130, which comprise the consolidated and University
Statements of Financial Position as at 30 June 2023, the
consolidated and University Statements of Comprehensive
Income, the consolidated and University Statements
of Changes in Fund Balances and the consolidated and
University Cash Flow Statements for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the University
and of the Group as at 30 June 2023 and of their financial
performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA™).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Council of the University is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the financial report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

Responsibilities of the Council and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The Council of the University is responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and for such internal control as the
Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Council of the University is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Council of the
University either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Those charged with governance are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing

the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 26 of Hong Kong Baptist University
Ordinance (Cap. 1126), and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University



T B AR B Y R R DUk
RN LR R IR ENEN DR o)
KL [ R0 42 o A R R
H o

AR A BT IR R BOR e
FE R A & w5 # 1 A0A B 48R B
Bk

R RO R A R A

ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁoﬁ%%%ﬂ%%
At IR > W R A7 A L T
DU B B B K A R > A T T
HLHCH OB WA R R R R
EEREEE o WREMBAFEE
RORTEE M > RIA 6 BETE A% A it
o R A B A AR S R R
AR B B o A A B A B A
Ao MEMEERRFERER
o AT A 5 a2 2 T A R
HIEBriUE i # at & » R > R
AR 2 JH w1 DL AT A A EOK B R

R -

AT 8 A B 5 R Y R A B
A MRS BFEE DX
e MBRERRT P RS
B

st B R R O B
B fs BB TR - M I R
WMo LS MBERKRERE
Roo BAM A TR B R A AT U7
o BEEMEAT - RMAFEFER
RYERTRFAE -

2022-23  HA#5#H Financial Report

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the Council.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as

a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

10 October 2023
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2023

G X
Consolidated University
(‘%)ﬁfijﬁrthousands of Hong Kong dollars ) ﬂfo?e 2023 2022 2023 2022
KA Income 0
B Government Subventions » 1,806,183 1,675,889 1,787,107 1,654,026
% ARRAME  Tuition, Programme and Other Fees 3 1,483,329 1,367,378 1,483,329 1,367,378
FIERFELEUA,/ (B5#E) Interest and Net Investment Income/(Loss) 4 329,313 (599,798) 329,140 (600,226)
TRk D 2 1R Donations and Benefactions 5 114,832 193,253 112,821 188,879
RARFIA Auxiliary Services Income 6 251,664 277,086 242,158 271,866
HAfA Other Income 7 45,462 39,718 35,365 28,731
4,030,783 2,953,526 3,989,920 2,910,654
Fil Expenditure 5,9
BB B TR Teaching, Learning and Research
HERF Teaching and Research 2,127,801 2,019,083 2,117,484 2,015,267
B Library 82,467 73,971 82,467 73,971
B Central Computing Facilities 113,589 108,527 113,545 108,482
HAbBR I Other Academic Services 101,307 96,138 104,871 95,462
LS Institutional Support
BT Management and General 308,865 300,501 306,740 298,318
P |5 Premises and Related Expenses 542,810 538,980 517,462 512,945
B T — o E s Students and General Education Services 219,518 207,971 219,518 207,971
HAEH Other Activities 23,622 29,502 16,864 19,807
3,519,979 3,374,673 3,478,951 3,332,223
BEER/ (B8 Surplus/(Deficit) from Operations 510,804 (421,147) 510,969 (421,569)
EERENFZER Loss on Disposal of an Associate is (832) - - -
TE (A N v 2 1R Share of Loss of an Associate s (597) (27) - -
et 1 vl € Share of Profit of Joint Ventures 16 101,631 18,970 - -
WBLHT S/ (B Surplus/(Deficit) before Taxation 611,006 (402,204) 510,969 (421,569)
Bﬁ%%ﬁx Income Tax 33(a) - 4 — —
KEERR/(EE) Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year 611,006 (402,200) 510,969 (421,569)
SER Attributable to:
K& The University 612,465 (401,229) 510,969 (421,569)
EFali o Non-controlling Interests (1,459) 971) - -
611,006 (402,200) 510,969 (421,569)
AR/ (EH) Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year 611,006  (402,200) 510969  (421,569)
AAE B F A 2 Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year
LRARENAHE Ttems that may be reclassified
BB RNEE subsequently to surplus or deficit:
RSN E R Exchange differences on translation of
Bk financial statements of 6 (33,942) (9,418) - -
E 50 2 ajoint venture outside Hong Kong
RSN A 7 Exchange differences on translation of
iy ey financial statements of subsidiaries (2,064) (620) - -
WS AR outside Hong Kong
3% 4 % .
RESRTNERE  Total Comprehensive Income 575000  (412238) 510969 (421,569)
for the Year
2022-23  HAHSH 4 Financial Report & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2023 (Cont'd)

Ga K
Consolidated University

(‘%)ﬁfszjﬁrthousands of Hong Kong dollars ) ﬂ{fe 2023 2022 2023 2022
HEH)/%: Transfers (from)/to:
—fR BB R S General and Development Reserve Fund 10 (25,898) (54,147) (28,621) (56,984)
HES Restricted Funds i 260,649 34,328 193,874 19,020
Ktk s Other Funds 5 341,708 (391,448) 345,716 (383,605)
s Non-controlling Interests (1,459) 971) - -
A 25 A A Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 575,000 (412,238) 510,969 (421,569)

FIRA 532 E 130 H Z ML A A IS Rk 2 — b1

The Notes set out on pages 32 to 130 form an integral part of the financial statements.

REHE 2023410 3 10 H NG FF T 5 4
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 10 October 2023.

] R IR

SREkE Lt RIS 2B 85

Ms. Rosanna Y. T. Choi Prof. Alexander Ping-kong Wai Mr. Kok Ming Lee
Treasurer President & Vice-Chancellor Director of Finance

2022-23  HAHSH 4 Financial Report & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2023

Fotes IN-.
Consolidated University
(LN T3 Wt
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
A Non-Current Assets
QLI Investment Properties 3 56 61 56 61
27 HAbH2E T bt Other Properties and Equipment 5 4,156,595 3,417,192 4,108,764 3,358,483
4,156,651 3,417,253 4,108,820 3,358,544
BEE AR ZHES Interest in an Associate 15 - 1,429 - -
REEHREZHER  Interests in Joint Ventures 16 457,164 389,475 146,042 146,042
g Investments 17 6,685 6,946 10,535 10,796
4,620,500 3,815,103 4,265,397 3,515,382
WE & Current Assets
"E Investments 17 4,648,871 4,933,285 4,648,871 4,933,285
YT ZK ~ TAMIRZC Accounts Receivable,
ik Prepayments and Deposits 18 206,274 159,320 211,157 167,815
MR Term Deposits 19 3,049,371 2,344,781 3,049,371 2,344,781
Bla R B4 Cash and Cash Equivalents 0 407,549 554,054 359,921 499,337
8,312,065 7,991,440 8,269,320 7,945,218
T Current Liabilities
TR A Deferred Income 2 1,643,708 1,417,677 1,628,742 1,397,496
HRHAR Contract Liabilities 2 321,625 300,333 321,625 300,333
HEAH Lease Liabilities % 28,436 20,522 12,661 6,138
1§ B aFI Provision for Employee Benefits 5 174,206 192,818 173,928 192,607
JEATIR 2 S RERTJEH  Accounts Payable and Accruals 2 704,996 505,034 697,752 498,039
PR Bank Loans 72 = 3,285 = 3,285
2,872,971 2,439,669 2,834,708 2,397,898
R & Net Current Assets 5,439,004 5,551,771 5,434,612 5,547,320
BEMMBRE ARG  Total Assets less Current Liabilities 10,059,594 9,366,874 9,700,009 9,062,702
I =R Non-Current Liabilities
FEATIR 2K L MEGHIEE  Accounts Payables and Accruals % 26,589 - 26,589 -
1 B A R Provision for Employee Benefits % 118,869 126,684 118,809 126,620
HEAE Lease Liabilities 2% 26,543 73,453 14,034 52,924
B3 Government Loans 271 105,411 102,950 105,411 102,950
R AU L T Deferred Capital Funds 2 2,850,443 2,403,685 2,849,416 2,402,064
R A Deferred Income 2 656,163 959,526 656,163 959,526
3,784,018 3,666,298 3,770,422 3,644,084
B NET ASSETS 6,275,576 5,700,576 5,929,587 5,418,618
— i B EREME RS General and Development Reserve Fund 1o 275,734 277,172 259,910 264,671
HpHEE Restricted Funds 1 3,810,269 3,561,394 3,469,299 3,287,199
HA 4 Other Funds 0 2,180,649 1,851,027 2,200378 1,866,748
FUNDS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
5 M B
5B KB 4 UNIVERSITY 6,266,652 5,690,193 5929587 5418618
FE P I £ Non-controlling Interests 8,924 10,383 - -
e Mg TOTAL FUNDS 6,275,576 5,700,576 5,929,587 5,418,618

FIHAH32F 130 EH Z Ml sk B A M B R 2 — 5 -

The Notes set out on pages 32 to 130 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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BE 2023 4 6 A 30 HILEEB & &
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2023

e K&
Consolidated University

(3T 2R i3k
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
BHED Operating Activities
BRBERI 282/ (HR)  Surplus/(Deficit) before Taxation 611,006 (402,204) 510,969 (421,569)
FBIEH Adjustments for:
FBIA Interest Income 4 (82,655) (7,974) (82,482) (7,546)
i B A Dividend Income 4 (66) (67) (66) (67)
e Depreciation 8 305,550 306,910 287,575 289,128
HAh# & A Other Investment Income 4 (15) (15) (15) (15)
RANEiiN=giiEA! Interest Expenses on

FB Lease Liabilities 2,394 2820 1,692 1,989
BB E S H Interest Expenses of loans 2,499 2,580 2,499 2,580
B HAb A 2E Loss on Disposal of

BMZER Other Properties and Equipment 269 640 269 617
WEZERRKRER  NetRealised and Unrealised

Fls/ (B5E) Gains/(Loss) on Investments ) (246,577) 607,854 (246,577) 607,854
HEBET 2l Gain on Lease Modification (3,863) - (3,863) -

‘“4 E ;E\h / .
Hi g %} R Transfer from Deferred Capital Funds 2 (197,051) (215,336) (196,364) (214,632)

=3
FEE /N A ZE1E  Loss on Disposal of an Associate 15 832 - - -
N ;
L jliﬁz Rk Share of Profit of Joint Ventures 16 (101,631) (18,970) - -
i 1 /N =1

WEE@HZP Al Share of Loss of an Associate 15 597 27 - -

1
AR I S0 2 B Foreign Exchange Difference (304) (73) - -
BEE4L%BH 2 Operating Results before
= g P g

B Changes in Working Capital 290,985 276,192 273,637 258,339
JEUSC IR 2% ~ T ATIR 2% (Increase)/Decrease in Accounts

42 (3841) /7> Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits (7.647) 34,063 (4,035) 3,532
JREASF R 2k I ME T Increase in Accounts

HH 25 Payable and Accruals 25,136 22,072 24,887 23233
B Bt A2 Decrease in Provision for Employee

Wb Bencfits (26,427) (15,463) (26,490) (15,331)
BB Increase in Contract Liabilities 21,292 4,492 21,292 4,492
T 2 38 m Increase in Deferred Income 514,596 623,377 519,718 626,780
BEES 2 g Cosh Generated from Operating 817935 944,733 809,000 937,045

Activities

A Tax Paid
iR o B i RIS B Hong Kong Profits Tax Refunded - 2 - -
PRV 3, Net Cash Generated from
25y R
REEDH R HEE Operating Activities 817,935 944,735 809,009 937,045
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R 2023 4F 6 H 30 HIRAE B G B aR ()
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2023 (Cont’d)

29

e K&
Consolidated University

(LA T oeat) Wk
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
BB Investing Activities
e B Interest Received 42,846 9,116 42,673 8,688
2 i & Dividend Received 66 67 66 67
E W2 S Increase in Term Deposits (704,590)  (1,392,645) (704,590)  (1,392,645)
i R A 3 Payments for Acquisition of

it e Propem‘gs d Epment (888,504)  (449379)  (888212) (449,091
W IR HARE S+ Net Cash Inflow from Sales/Purchases of

RE R AL G4z Other Debt Securities, Equity Securities 562,966 1,019,765 562,966 1,017,765

FERERA and Investment Funds
B A 7 2 53K Payments for Loan to a Subsidiary - - - (750)
GG BB 2 F B84 Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (987,216)  (813,076) (987,097)  (815,966)
il ¥ Financing Activities
WHHPERSE K/t Grants Received for Other Properties and

PR b 2 B3 Equipment Acquisition 51,881 92,122 51,881 2,122
REORiiN-Viikopd Capital Element of

BT I{)ease Rentals Paid 200 (23,388) (20,280) (,194) (3,634)
EffEfEZ Interest Element of

FlE 0 Lease Rentals Paid 20(6) (2,394) (2,820) (1,692) (1,989)
BRMATER Repayments of Bank Loans and Interest 20 (3,323) (21,898) (3,323) (21,898)
REEE T2 Net Cash Generated from

T A Financing Activities 22,776 47,124 38,672 62,601
BeRERBEZ Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash and

(mé\ﬂ;/@m C;Sh Equiv)alents (146,505) 178,783 (139,416) 183,680
B4 Rk%ME42  Cashand Cash Equivalents at

YR the Beginning of the Year 554,054 375,271 499,337 315,657

Ko 1 > .
ﬁigﬁgiﬁﬁz Ciif’:g':di‘;s;fggfk’“ts . wo A0S0 554054 359921 499337
IO

FIMA 322 130 H Z ME Gk 3 A B ok 2 — 4

The Notes set out on pages 32 to 130 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Fund Balances for the year ended 30 June 2023

Tea) E 2 & % W #B #®__%
iz Suatement of Changes in sfund SSalances

B 20234 6 A 30 H LRSSt sk

A
Consolidated
—~RRERE  HHEE RS BB it
ikt 4 s
General and Non-
(BT Development  Restricted Other  controlling
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Reserve Fund Funds Funds Interests Total
(W 10) (W3t 11) (W3t 12)
(Note 10) (Note 11) (Note 12)
2225710 #ts Balance as at 1 July 2022 1772 3561394 1,851,027 10,383 5,700,576
(%) /H Transfer (to)/from Statement of
AT E Comprehensive Income (25,398) 296,655 341,708 (1,459) 611,006
BRI B Exchange differences on translation of
WHREZ financial statements of a joint venture outside - (33,942) - - (33,942)
i3 Hong Kong
A BEINHHE A ] Exchange differences on translation of
JligsiEva financial statements of subsidiaries outside - (2,064) - - (2,064)
B .25 48 Hong Kong
i U Inter-Fund Transfer 23,860 (1,774) (12,086 - -
202346 H30 H Afp Balance as at 30 June 2023 275734 3810269 2,180,649 8,924 6,275,576
2ETHIR SR Balance as at 1 July 2021 309,278 3,540484 2,251,698 11,354 6,112,814
R (%) /A Transfer (to)/from Statement of
AT E Comprehensive Income (54,147) 44,366 (391,448) (971) (402,200
WESIMA B Exchange differences on translation of
HHREZ financial statements of a joint venture outside - (9,418) - - (9418)
B 52 4 Hong Kong
A EINHE A ] Exchange differences on translation of
ik financial statements of subsidiaries outside - (620) - - (620)
B .25 48 Hong Kong
HA A H IR Inter-Fund Transfer 22,641 (13418) (9,023) - -
2022661300 &t Balance as at 30 June 2022 101 3,561,394 1,851,027 10,383 5,700,576
2022-23  HAHSH 4 Financial Report & K& Hong Kong Baptist University



B 2023 4F 6 A 30 H k4R R S A5 R A R ()
Statement of Changes in Fund Balances for the year ended 30 June 2023 (Cont'd)

KE
University
— i R Bt e YRS Jof R 4 gt
BB 4
General and
(L HET 23 Development Restricted Other
3 ] (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Reserve Fund Funds Funds Total
(3L 10) (W3E 11 (W3t 12)
(Note 10) (Note 11) (Note 12)
20224 7H1H &% Balance as at 1 July 2022 264,671 3,287,199 1,866,748 5,418,618
HEH /(%) Transfer from/(to) Statement of
AHlEE Comprehensive Income (28,621) 193,874 345,716 510,969
4 M B Inter-Fund Transfer 23,360 (11,774 (12,086) -
20234630 H 45%%  Balance as at 30 June 2023 259,910 3,469,299 2,200, 378 5,929,587
20214£7H1H 48R Balance as at 1 July 2021 299,014 3,281,597 2,259,576 5,840,187
HEs /(%) Transfer from/(to) Statement of
AR Comprehensive Income (56,984) 19,020 (383,605) (421,569)
B M B R Inter-Fund Transfer 22,641 (13,418) (9,223) -
20224E6 30 H 4542  Balance as at 30 June 2022 264,671 3,287,199 1,866,748 5,418,618

FIHRH32F 130 EH 2 Ml sk B AR M B R 2 — 50 -

The Notes set out on pages 32 to 130 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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4B t5 Financial Report

(a)

Significant Accounting Policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable provisions of the Statement
of Recommended Practice (“SORP”) for the UGC-
funded institutions and the Cost Allocation Guidelines
for UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities
(“CAGs”) issued by the University Grants Committee
(“UGC”). Significant accounting policies adopted by

the Group and the University are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group
and the University. Note 1(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group and the University
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in

these financial statements.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2023 comprise the University and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and
the Group’s interests in an associate and joint ventures

on the basis set out in Note 1(e).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
investments in debt and equity securities (see Note 1(f))

that are stated at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgement,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgement about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty

are discussed in Note 34.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current

accounting period.

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial

statements for the current accounting period:

. Amendment to HKFRS 3, Business combinations:
Reference to the conceptual framework

. Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
Cycle

. Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and

equipment: Proceeds before intended use

. Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets: Onerous contracts —

cost of fulfilling a contract

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the
amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and

equipment: Proceeds before intended use

The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting the
proceeds from selling items produced before that asset
is available for use from the cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment. Instead, the sales proceeds and
the related costs should be included in profit and loss.
The amendments do not have a material impact on
these financial statements as the Group does not sell
items produced before an item of property, plant and

equipment is available for use.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets: Onerous contracts —

cost of fulfilling a contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling the
contract includes both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling contracts. Previously, the Group
included only incremental costs when determining
whether a contract was onerous. In accordance with the
transitional provisions, the Group has applied the new
accounting policy to contracts for which it has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at at 1 July 2022, and has

concluded that none of them is onerous.
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Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business combinations
“Reference to the conceptual framework”

The amendments update the reference to the latest
version of Conceptual Framework issued in March
2018, and add an exception to the requirement for
an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception relates to liabilities and contingent liabilities
that would have been within the scope of HKAS 37
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination. Under
the exception, when applying HKFRS 3 an entity
should apply the more specific criteria in HKAS 37
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively (instead of the
Conceptual Framework) to determine whether a present
obligation exists at the acquisition date.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

This package of annual improvements contains
amendments to three standards, namely HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9 and HKAS 41, and an amendment to an
illustrative example accompanying HKFRS 16. The
amendment to HKFRS 1 provides optional relief for
the measurement of cumulative translation differences
to those first-time adopters which take advantage
of the exemption in paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS 1.
Such entities are subsidiaries which become first-
time adopters later than their parents. The amendment
to HKFRS 9 clarifies that only fees paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the
other’s behalf, are included when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. The amendment to illustrative
example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16 removes from
the fact pattern a reimbursement relating to leasehold
improvements, as the example had not explained clearly
whether the reimbursement would meet the definition
of a lease incentive in HKFRS 16. The amendment to
HKAS 41 removes the requirement to exclude taxation
cash flows when measuring fair value, thereby aligning
the fair value measurement requirements in HKAS 41
with those in HKFRS 13.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the

Group and other parties) are considered.

Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment. In
the University’s Statement of Financial Position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less

impairment losses (see Note 1(j)).

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
University, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate

share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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(e)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated Statement of Financial Position within the
total fund, separately from the funds attributable to the
University. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the

funds attributable to the University.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated fund balances to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to

goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

Associate and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
University has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or University and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the

net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). The cost of the
investment includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment, and
any direct investment into the associate or joint venture

that forms part of the Group’s equity investment.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University



BeAR - A% B0 TR AR R ER T A W
TEAR MEAG 2 BB B R (2
By S BBUEA B AR AT (R 4R (L
WRE1G)) 1R th g o fE 4 — s
Ao REBEEMSEA T EBT
PO EET R - O E AR
JEA Z AR ER o~ AR R ER L RS 4
R A 3 B RO IR 2 BAR
A DA B AT ] 350 (A 48 1 A A T
i R WD o T AR A ER ) B A 4%
3 G A A T W R 2 O AR BR B
RIAH TR AR A 2T AR R N TR o

AR KL A B A F R
6 T R L A R B 2 WD
B LG AR EE
%Wﬁi?>ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
18 A A K B R JRUR I 1 E
e BAT - SR E B R AT
BROM o BEULTF - Ak B R 2 1
i i A LA R E IR A
{6 [ R R A O R
W w A A TR
> AL H AR I HE SR -

U

*?%n>
Bk o> mE

KB R LI N R A I
]2 5 B e A ) R B B R 4 - 394%
2 [ B S W S 2 W T A Y HE i b
FAEH - BERNAERERESC
W A B > AR B
M 4R B B 7 K A T i 6 A

n;i]"

2022-23  HA#5#H Financial Report

Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment (see Note 1(j)). At each reporting
date, the Group assesses whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment is impaired. Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment loss for the year are recognised in
the consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated Statement of

Comprehensive Income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method, together with any
other long-term interests that in substance form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate or the joint

venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred,
in which case they are recognised immediately in the

consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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(f)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as

the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

In the University’s Statement of Financial Position,
investments in an associate and joint ventures are stated

at cost less impairment losses (see Note 1(j)).

Investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,

associates and joint ventures, are set out below:

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell
the investment. The investments are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs,
except for those investments measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL”) for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair value of
financial instruments, see Note 29(f). These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending

on their classification.
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(@)

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified

into one of the following measurement categories:

—  Amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method (see
Note 1(u)).

—  FVPL if the investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in

surplus or deficit.
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(i)

(9)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made
if the investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether they are
classified as FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in surplus
or deficit as other income in accordance with the policy

set out in (see Note 1(u)).

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
Note 1(i)) to earn rental income and/or for capital

appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the Statement of
Financial Position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see Note 1(j)). Gains or losses
arising from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are determined as the differences between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
investment property and are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income on the date of retirement or
disposal. Rental income from investment properties is

accounted for as described in Note 1(u)(v).
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(h)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
investment properties, less their estimated residual
values, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives
for investment properties are the same as those for

buildings as shown in Note 1(h).

Other properties and equipment

Other properties and equipment, including right-of-
use assets arising from leases over leasehold properties
where the Group is not the registered owner of the
property interest, are stated in the Statement of
Financial Position at cost less accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses (see Note 1(j)).

The cost of self-constructed items of properties and
equipment includes the costs of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the

site on which they are located.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of properties and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the date of

retirement or disposal.
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Where parts of an item of properties and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life
of the item and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.

Leasehold land granted by the Government for usage

by the University is recorded at a nominal amount of $1.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see Note 1(j)), and is not depreciated. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
properties and equipment when completed and ready for

use.
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(i)

(@)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of

the economic benefits from that use.

As a Lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less and leases of low-value assets. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over

the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-
use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see Notes 1(h) and
1G))-
FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University
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(i)

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is
accounted for separately from the right-of-use assets
in accordance with the accounting policy applicable
to investments in debt securities carried at amortised
costs. Any difference between the initial fair value and
the nominal value of the deposits is accounted for as
additional lease payments made and is included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded
in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification™) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

In the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined
as the present value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period.

As alessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as
an operating lease.

The rental income from operating leases is recognised
in accordance with Note 1(u)(v).
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1)

(@)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit losses from financial instruments, accounts

receivables and lease receivables

For the Group’s accounts receivables, lease receivables
and cash and cash equivalents, the Group recognises
a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”)
which is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
(which are the losses that are expected to result from
all possible default events over the expected lives of
the items to which the ECL model applies). For the
Group’s other financial assets measured at amortised
cost, the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs (which are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date) unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including debt
securities, equity investments, investment funds and
derivative financial assets measured at FVPL are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

(1) Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.
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(2) Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or interest

on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit

rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability

to meet its obligation to the Group.
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Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,

such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount

through a loss allowance account.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:
— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as default or past due

event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; or
— the disappearance of an active market for a

security because of financial difficulties of the

issuer.
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(3) Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the

amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment
in Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period

in which the recovery occurs.
(i) Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each reporting date to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

— investment properties;

— other properties and equipment, including right-of-

use assets; and

— investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures

in the Statement of Financial Position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.
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Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present values using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows which are largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generate cash

inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income if the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognised to reduce the carrying amount of the
asset or assets in the cash-generating unit on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), or value in use

(if determinable).

Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of an asset. A reversal of
an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.
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(k)

)

(m)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognise
revenue (see Note 1(u)) before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment terms
set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in Note 1(j)(i)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the

consideration has become unconditional (see Note 1(1)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see Note 1(u)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see
Note 1(1)).

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued

under the effective interest method (see Note 1(u)).

Accounts and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract asset
(see Note 1(k)). Receivables are stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses (see Note 1(3)(1)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits and short-term deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, having less than
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with

policy set out in Note 1(5)(i).
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(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Interest-bearing borrowings and interest
expenses

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Interest expenses are expensed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they are

incurred.

Government loans

Government loans are stated at amortised cost. The
details of the government loans received by the Group

are disclosed in Note 27.1.

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting is immaterial, in which

case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Deferred capital funds

Deferred capital funds are Government grants and
donations earmarked for capital expenditure received
and receivable by the Group. These funds, when received
or become receivable, are initially recorded as Deferred
Capital Funds and shown in the Statement of Financial
Position. When the related assets are put into use, an
amount equivalent to the depreciation charge (see
Note 1(h)) of the related properties and equipment is
transferred from Deferred Capital Funds to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income as income of the same

period.
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(r)

(s)

Employee benefits

Salaries, gratuities, paid annual leave, leave passage
and any costs to the Group on monetary and non-
monetary benefits provided to employees are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered

by employees of the Group.

Contributions to the retirement schemes, including
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme as required under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, are recognised as expenses in the Statement

of Comprehensive Income as incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring

costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively. Current tax is the expected tax
payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to the tax payable

in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused

tax losses and unused tax credits.
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(t)

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be utilised,

are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rate enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group and the
University have a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure

expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.
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(u) Revenue and other income

(@)

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the provision of services or the use by
others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business. All of the income is
arising from the ordinary course of the business of the

Group.

Revenue is recognised when control over service is
transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to
use the asset, at the amount of promised consideration
to which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding

those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:

Government grants

Government grants mainly consist of block grants,
supplementary grants, matching grants, research
matching grant, earmarked grants, capital grants and

grants from government and related organisation.

Government grants without a specific purpose attached are
recognised as revenue in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income on an accrual basis. Any block grants which
are received in excess of the related expenditure are
transferred to General and Development Reserve Fund

in accordance with the requirements of the UGC.

Government grants for specific purposes are recognised
in the Statement of Financial Position initially as
deferred income when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attached to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for operating expenditure
incurred are recognised as revenue in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the related expenditure are

incurred.
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

™)

Government grants spent on capital expenditure are
initially recorded as deferred capital funds and
recognised as income over the useful lives of the related
assets when they are put into use to the extent of their

related depreciation charge for the year.

Tuitions, programme and other fees

Tuitions, programme and other fees are recognised as
income on an accrual basis over the duration of the
programmes and unearned fees received are treated as

contract liabilities.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised

when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
in equal instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term. Lease incentives granted are recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an integral

part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
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(vi)

(vii)

(v)

Donations

Donations with general purposes are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income when the Group
becomes entitled to the donations and it is probable that
they will be received, which is generally upon receipt
of cash. Donations with specific purposes designated by
the donors are initially recognised as deferred income
when received, and then recognised as income to the
extent of the related expenditure incurred during the

year.

Service income

Service income is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income when the relevant service is
rendered and unearned service income received are

treated as contract liabilities.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates

ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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(w)

(@)

(i)

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the average foreign exchange
rates for the year. Statement of Financial Position items
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the reporting date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised as a movement in

the Exchange Reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognised in the Exchange Reserve which relate to
that operation outside Hong Kong is included in the

calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(a) has control or joint control over the Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:
(a) The entity and the Group are members of the same

group (which means that each parent, subsidiary

and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);
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(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

S

(2

(h)

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or a joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (i);

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity); or

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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2. BUR#EK

Government Subventions

e Ko
Consolidated University
(LA T 07T
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022
& ek Subventions from UGC
KK Block Grants 1,329,151 1,201,927 1,329,151 1,201,927
i Bl 48 K Supplementary Grants 37,921 57,068 37,921 57,068
1,367,072 1,258,995 1,367,072 1,258,995
e 35 il B <2 Matching Grants - 1,695 - 1,695
BIFECSE M B4 Research Matching Grant 14,727 15,735 14,727 15,735
T E HE K Earmarked Grants
52 Research 75,780 65,742 75,780 65,742
HoAthy Others 86,621 62,193 86,621 62,193
A E E 4R Housing Related 7,182 7,182 7,182 7,182
169,583 135,117 169,583 135,117
A5 75 7= il K7 Rates and Government
Hu AR Rent Refund 42,939 42,610 30,099 29,770

FLETAH KM# - Capital Grants and
I Kok T AA &1 Block

T Allocation 97,695 105,344 97,695 105,344
BT K A BRE  Grants from Government
3K and Related Organisations 114,167 116,393 107,931 107,370

1,806,183 1,675,889 1,787,107 1,654,026
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Bl R Rl

Tuition, Programme and Other Fees

A RKE
Consolidated and University
(AT ooat)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022
BETE YR UGC-funded Programmes
ok Tuition Fees 413,371 391,687
PR T b W 22 Programme and Other Fees 11,080 9,579
424,451 401,266
FEHE & B R Non-UGC-funded Programmes
2k Tuition Fees 1,039,426 953,523
PR S A W 2 Programme and Other Fees 19,452 12,589
1,058,878 966,112
1,483,329 1,367,378
MERFHE (EH), WA
Interest and Net Investment Income/(Loss)
e KE
Consolidated University
(DA HT ot
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022
i RE S A Dividends from Listed Securities 66 67 66 67
S A B B 5 Interest Income and
(R E Net Exchange Gains 82,655 7,974 82,482 7,546
BEZ BB FORE B Net Realised and Unrealised
st/ (k5H8) Gains/(Loss) on Investments 246,577  (607,854) 246,577  (607,854)
Aty Others 15 15 15 15
329,313 (599,798) 329,140 (600,226)
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5. HRAEEEM
Donations and Benefactions

BE KE
Consolidated University

(LA W T oest)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022
HEEE Capital Projects 3,526 3,526 3,526 3,526
AN E) A4 2 $3 04 Endowment 9,265 23,372 9,265 23,372
HoAtb Others 93,091 156,784 91,080 152,410
1584 - B K BB 4 Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries 8,950 9,571 8,950 9,571

114,832 193,253 112,821 188,879

TEBE2023F6 H30H L% > REBMBEKREREGFERERGEEFEESHRALESR/E D A
8,178 BT (2021-224F % + 8,43257C) & 7,977# 7T (2021-224F )% + 8,063 #7T) ©

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group and the University received donations and benefactions of
$81.78 million (2021-22: $84.32 million) and $79.77 million (2021-22: $80.63 million) respectively from
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust.

T W] 5 00 R P R ok 2 8 R A A 22 B S B BRBT
Donations and benefactions for specific purposes designated by the donors within a fixed period of time are

recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditure incurred during the year.

2022-23  HAHSH 4 Financial Report & K& Hong Kong Baptist University



6. AMEERBWA

Auxiliary Services Income

e KE
Consolidated University
(LA W T oest)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022
B P s A Consultancy Income 7,610 7,524 7,610 7,396
Ji 1 License Fees 3,904 4,180 3,696 3,920
e A Rental Income 17,887 12,308 8,617 8,401
BEES Residence Halls 43,612 33,849 43,612 33,849
R U A Service Income 174,418 214,891 174,390 213,966
Wk B 15w 4 Staff Quarters Rental 4,233 4,334 4,233 4,334
251,664 277,086 242,158 271,866
7. HAbA
Other Income
ey KE
Consolidated University
(AW T oest)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022
e TION Conference Income 331 358 331 358
B i 2 Fees on Student Activities 2,942 3,685 2,942 3,685
METE Miscellaneous 25,625 20,829 15,528 9,842
W% Research 16,564 14,846 16,564 14,846
45,462 39,718 35,365 28,731

2022-23  HAHSH 4 Financial Report & K& Hong Kong Baptist University




8. i
Expenditure
we
Consolidated
=k S BHEL iR st
B Staff Costs Operating
(M BT eat) ..
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) and Benefits Expenses Deprecmtlon Total
BB B RA Teaching, Learning and Research
BEATE Teaching and Research 1,570,189 455,368 102,244 2,127,801
EES Library 2,11 16,578 23,718 82,467
L R Central Computing Facilities 61,951 41,178 10,460 113,589
R Other Academic Services 84,711 15928 668 101,307
1,759,022 529,052 137,090 2,425,164
BB (WEs.1) Institutional Support (Note 8.1)
R Management and General 247,827 54,956 6,082 308,865
Ba LA Premises and Related Expenses 75,210 308,152 159,448 542,810
B R— B8 A W Students and General Education Services 63,383 154,100 2,035 219,518
Hiti5 ) Other Activities 18,294 4433 895 23,622
404,714 521,641 168,460 1,094,815
20234 M3 Total Expenditure 2023 2,163,736 1,050,693 305,550 3,519,979
HE - BERAH Teaching, Learning and Research
Y Teaching and Research 1,564,623 351,887 102,573 2,019,083
T 2 h Library 37913 12,576 23,482 73971
R R Central Computing Facilities 62,028 37,091 9,208 108,527
KB s Other Academic Services 82,614 13,286 238 96,138
1,747,178 415,040 135,501 2,297,719
B2 (WD) Institutional Support (Note 8.1)
EH R Management and General 245970 44,587 9,944 300,501
i B T B Premises and Related Expenses 72,931 307,968 158,081 538,980
B R— BRI Students and General Education Services 68,719 136,578 2,674 207971
HipiEH Other Activities 21871 6,921 710 29,502
409,491 496,054 171,409 1,076,954
202 BT Total Expenditure 2022 2,156,669 911,094 306,910 3,374,673
2022-23  HAHSH 4 Financial Report & K& Hong Kong Baptist University




8. X Hi(#)
Expenditure (Cont’d)
KE
University
BEEH  EE i ast
B Staff Costs Operating
(TR o
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) and Benefits Expenses Deprecmtlon Total
BB B RA Teaching, Learning and Research
BE TR Teaching and Research 1,565,783 451,851 99,850 2,117,484
E Library 42,171 16,578 23,718 82,467
L R Central Computing Facilities 61,951 41,134 10,460 113,545
HA 2R Other Academic Services 83,752 20,460 659 104,871
1,753,657 530,023 134,687 2,418,367
BB (WEs.1) Institutional Support (Note 8.1)
R Management and General 247,827 52,831 6,082 306,740
& A R Premises and Related Expenses 75,210 298,057 144,195 517,462
B R— B8 A W Students and General Education Services 63,383 154,100 2,035 219,518
HoA i 8 Other Activities 13,254 3,034 576 16,864
399,674 508,022 152,888 1,060,584
20234 JE 4 Total Expenditure 2023 2,153,331 1,038,045 287,575 3,478,951
HE BRI Teaching, Learning and Research
HE R R Teaching and Research 1,558,465 356,854 99,948 2,015,267
Ef Library 37913 12,576 23482 73,971
R R Central Computing Facilities 62,028 37,046 9,208 108,482
KB s Other Academic Services 81,973 13,260 229 95462
1,740,379 419,936 132,867 2,293,182
HEL R (.1 Institutional Support (Note 8.1)
EH R Management and General 245970 42,404 9,944 298,318
i B T B Premises and Related Expenses 72,931 296,819 143,195 512,945
BY R — B E s Students and General Education Services 68,719 136,578 2,674 207,971
HoAh 15 B Other Activities 16,708 2,651 448 19,807
404,328 478 452 156,261 1,039,041
20224 4 1 Total Expenditure 2022 2,144,707 898,388 289,128 3,332,223
2022-23  HAHSH 4 Financial Report & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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8.1 BERZEEL MM

Analysis of Operating Expenses - Institutional Support

b k8
Consolidated University
(AT IEH)
(Expressed i thousands of Hong Kong dollrs) 2023 2022 2023 2022
B R Management and General
Bk /B Advertisement/Promotion 5,636 6,835 3,923 3,848
172 (kS Auditor’s Remuneration 878 831 43 742
b Equipment 3,294 2,954 3,204 2,930
WAEHY General Expenses 25,694 19922 25,729 21,067
— R General Insurance 2411 2437 2,355 2,395
= Professional Fees 8,387 6,185 8,276 6,046
TR Recruitment Expenses 6,895 4,404 6,381 4384
Bk B 5 Staff Development 103 20 103 20
i Transportation 1,658 999 1,527 972
54,056 44,587 52,831 42,404
ReRkAEIH Premises and Related Expenses
REBTHERRE Campus Repair and Maintenance 65,926 59,416 65,926 59,416
EERREE Cleaning and Security Services 97,819 114273 93,464 109,794
) Equipment 739 528 541 391
LUNL B General Expenses 4,459 10,225 3,249 8,334
£ R Government Rent and Rates 30,922 30,642 30,237 29,770
METHE Minor Works 27,663 26,517 27,175 26,056
WAERS Office Rental 3,346 1,822 2,204 -
WERRE Property Insurance 3,825 5,563 3,585 5,309
BE% 2 Safety Expenses 465 542 465 54
BB TR RS RIRE Staff Quarters Repair and Maintenance 2,914 3,305 2914 3,305
K& R Utilities 70,074 55,135 68,207 53,902
308,152 307,968 298,057 296,819
B R~ E W Students and General Education Services
LiES 1 Congregation Expenses 2,145 1,076 2,145 1,076
B Equipment 1,448 1,696 1,448 1,696
EE g Examination Fee 110 12 110 12
MAERX General Expenses 4,945 4346 4,945 4346
B ER L Joint Sports Centre 1,083 1,159 1,083 1,159
B TR Medical and Dental Care 3,204 2,799 3,204 2,799
B m R Residence Halls Expenses 3,166 3,09 3,166 3,09
®REE Scholarships 100,032 98,241 100,032 98,241
BAEH Student Activities 30,562 16,954 30,562 16,954
B St ) Student Exchange Programme 7,405 7,199 7,405 7,199
154,100 136,578 154,100 136,578
HAEH) Other Activities 4433 6,921 3,034 2,651
521,641 496,054 508,022 478452

2022-23  HA#5#H Financial Report
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8.2 Mk H Bk

Higher Paid Staff Remuneration

A 202346 130 H 11 4F B2 K ERIR 5 AR R+ B8 180 & o & Sist BUF N -
For the year ended 30 June 2023, the number of higher paid staff with total remuneration* exceeding $1.8

million is as follows:

2023 2022
N N
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals

$1,800,001 - 1,950,000 39 35
$1,950,001 - 2,100,000 22 26
$2,100,001 - 2,250,000 24 22
$2,250,001 - 2,400,000 20 13
$2,400,001 - 2,550,000 10 19
$2,550,001 - 2,700,000 12 7
$2,700,001 - 2,850,000 4 3
$2,850,001 - 3,000,000 2 5
$3,000,001 - 3,150,000 5 4
$3,150,001 - 3,300,000 2 3
$3,300,001 - 3,450,000 4 -
$3,450,001 - 3,750,000 - -
$3,750,001 - 3,900,000 - 1
$3,900,001 - 4,050,000 - 3
$4,050,001 - 4,200,000 1 1
$4,200,001 - 4,350,000 3 -
$4,350,001 - 7,500,000 - -
$7,500,001 - 7,650,000 1 1

149 143

* FECIF £ AL, BIKEF B T2 AT G RAT - BRI RE TR BB IRT R BT ERFILEN
WFENG I IE RTT R 7 2 JERRE R (BT H - B R AR E S 3 R AT o
Remuneration includes salary, contribution to gratuity/retirement plans, cash allowances, housing benefits, passage allowances and
education allowances. For staff whose quarters were provided as part of their remuneration package, the ratable values assessed by
the Rating and Valuation Department were used as the values of their housing benefits in determining their total remuneration in the
vear.

* TR E20239F6 /130 H K20224F6 /130 H IEFE - FFFARRITE345 B0 £375 8 70 K435 F L £ 750870 MM A BRA B E -
During the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, there was nil staff with total remuneration between $3.45 million and $3.75 million and $4.35
million and $7.5 million.
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Income and Expenditure by Segment

Disclosures regarding segment reporting are included as
a requirement of the SORP and are not designed to fully
comply with the requirements of HKFRS 8 “Operating

segments”.

In accordance with the SORP, the University discloses
an analysis of income and expenditure recognised by
its reported segments that are defined by source of
funding, namely UGC-funded Activities and Non-
UGC-funded Activities.

UGC-funded Activities include programmes, research
projects and activities supported by UGC grants. Non-
UGC-funded Activities represent other activities funded
by sources other than UGC grants, including self-financed
funding, donations and grants from government agencies
other than UGC. For the purpose of cost allocation, certain
activities, which by nature are non-UGC funded activities,
could be deemed to be UGC-funded activities and hence
the relevant costs incurred are to be charged to the UGC

vote.

Cost allocation practices for UGC-funded and
non-UGC funded activities

(a) The University determines the basis of allocation
of costs between UGC-funded and non-UGC-
funded activities with reference to the UGC Notes
on Procedures and the CAGs which is effective
from 1 July 2018.

(b) The classification of UGC-funded and non-
UGC-funded activities is based on the funding
sources of the activities. The direct costs of the
UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities are
both charged fully and directly to the respective
activities.

(c) The CAGs define principles and approaches of
cost allocation, including the definition of cost
pools and cost drivers for UGC-funded and non-
UGC-funded activities on a full cost recovery
basis.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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10. General and Development Reserve Fund

The General and Development Reserve Fund (“GDRF”)
represents the balance of recurrent grants from the
UGC which is allowed to be carried forward from one
funding period to another. The balance of the GDRF at
the end of a funding period (usually a triennium) that
can be carried over to the next funding period should
not exceed 20% of the University’s approved Recurrent
Grants, other than the Earmarked Grants for Specific
Purposes, for that funding period. Such balance may

10.1 only be used for supporting UGC-approved activities
of the University. The fund balance with movements is
listed in Note 10.1.
10.1 R R B Rl S e S B)
Movements of General and Development Reserve Fund
Ea
Consolidated
(LTt
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
20224F7H 1 H &6k Balance as at 1 July 2022 277,772
A 2SR Transfer to Statement of Comprehensive Income (25,898)
B4 M R (B RE) Inter-Fund Transfer (Note) 23,860
20236 30 H &% Balance as at 30 June 2023 275,734
20214F7H 1 H & iz Balance as at 1 July 2021 309,278
T AT S R Transfer to Statement of Comprehensive Income (54,147)
LM LR (BF3E) Inter-Fund Transfer (Note) 22,641
202246 H 30 H A i Balance as at 30 June 2022 277,772
KA
University
(BLHE T3
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
20224F7H 1 H & fig Balance as at 1 July 2022 264,671
W A A R Transfer to Statement of Comprehensive Income (28,621)
F 4 M HOEOE (FfEEE) Inter-Fund Transfer (Note) 23,860
20234E6 30 H 46k Balance as at 30 June 2023 259,910
20214E7H 1 H &8k Balance as at 1 July 2021 299,014
W E 2w s R Transfer to Statement of Comprehensive Income (56,984)
FE 4 R0 B MR (B RE) Inter-Fund Transfer (Note) 22,641
202246 H30 H & Balance as at 30 June 2022 264,671
Note:

2022-23

TE 17 A AT E 7 ] 1 ) 1 i B rS T2 (LR IR B - AR — AR R B e A~ B9 B R e H 2 A -

Inter-Fund Transfer includes value of services provided by one cost centre to another, which was funded by General and Development Reserve

Fund, various Restricted and/or Other Funds.
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11.

Restricted Funds

Restricted Funds are designated for specific purposes
and classified separately according to their natures
and uses as described in Note 11.1. The relevant fund
balances with movements are listed in Note 11.2.

11.1 Restricted Funds are classified under the

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

®

(g

(h)

following items:

Endowment Fund is mainly donations on which the
University would, according to the wishes of the donors
or for strategic reasons, keep the principal intact and
only use income generated from the fund to support
University activities of designated purposes.

Self-financed Activities have accumulated surplus to be
used on the related self-financed activities generating
such surplus. They are therefore all designated for
specific purposes and are rarely used to finance other
activities of the Group.

Operation Reserves are provisions for planned expenditure
of certain self-financed activities with a specific nature e.g.
building repair and maintenance reserve for the hostel.

Scholarships, Prizes & Bursaries and Loan Funds are
used to award students according to the established
principles of the University.

Unspent Balance for Research represents the total
remaining balances of funds designated for different
research projects supported by non-government
subventions.

University Capital Works Fund represents the unspent
balance of all capital projects funded by non-government
fund plus an amount equivalent to the net book values of
those buildings financed by such funding.

Donations and Others are funds other than those stated
above and are to be used for certain designated purposes.

Exchange Reserve is the exchange difference arising
from the translation of the results of operations and
assets and liabilities of entities outside Hong Kong into
Hong Kong dollars.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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12.

Other Funds

Other Funds are funds other than Restricted Funds.
They are used to support the University’s general
activities without designated purposes and are generally
grouped into the items as described in Note 12.1. The
relevant fund balances with movements are listed in
Note 12.2.

12.1 Other Funds are classified under the following

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

items:

Unspent Balance of Matching Grants represents the
total remaining balances of funds from various rounds
of the Matching Grant Schemes. According to the
prevailing rules and regulations promulgated by the
UGC, the balance can be carried forward without time
limit for supporting UGC-approved activities of the

University.

Endowment Fund is mainly donations without
designated purposes on which the University would
keep the principal intact and only use the income
generated from the fund to support University’s

activities in general purposes.

Self-financed Activities have accumulated surplus
to be used on self-financing activities. They are not
designated for specific purposes and are used to finance

the Group’s and the University’s activities in general.

Donations and Others are funds other than those stated

above and are to be used without designated purposes.
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13, &Y ~ L R ()

Investment Properties, Other Properties and Equipment (Cont’d)

(a) BEAEERE

Right-of-use assets

92 R ] S TR O MR T (L0 A 20

The analysis of net book value of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

Foes KE
Consolidated University
20234 20224F 20234 20224
630H 7H1H  6H30H 7TH1H
30 June 1 July 30 June 1 July
(LAY T TRt
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022

Hittg A EY  Other properties leased for
% YRR own use, carried at
AR depreciated cost

50,187 85,894 22,392 51,415

TERE20234F6 H 30 H 1L 4FBE > B2 [ B R B2 08 1 HE 8 7 388 VR 70 Bl 752,46 1 5 T (20224F © 1408 70) K&
1,605 76 (20224F © 1408 50) » CEGEM I3 L BETR - AHMEGHT » HeBEEEAWEA
fbz EA AH B
During the year ended 30 June 2023, additions to right-of-use assets of the Group and the University were
$24.61 million and $16.05 million (2022: $1.40 million) respectively was included in Land and Buildings
under Note 13. The amount primarily related to the capitalised lease payments payable under new tenancy
agreements.

AE B B AL ) R 1 R AL B B 0 0 A OIS B RE20(c) K26

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out

in Notes 20(c) and 26, respectively.

REEE OB R TR M A EY 3 - B —RP A1 245 -

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as its offices premises through tenancy agreements.

The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 4 years.

2022-23
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13, &Y ~ Lk R (8)

Investment Properties, Other Properties and Equipment (Cont’d)
(a) BEFHHEE R ()
Right-of-use assets (Cont’d)

A B AT R AR 2 A 2 ST E A R

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income is as

follows:
Ey B
Consolidated University
égi;{%rfsjdf;:j:r}iousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022
MBI ERE B Depreciation charge of
G E right-of-use assets by class of
ZIEER underlying asset:
. h ies | f
oA gy Other properties leased for 22868 22,783 7,038 7,623
own use
HEARFE Interest on lease liabilities 2,394 2,820 1,692 1,989
HE MBS HAM E lati hort-
ﬁ?ﬁi%ﬁfﬁ oy HAth Expenses relating to short-term 1,155 1.895 1,155 1,465
HEZ leases
AR EIMEE Expenses relating to leases of
HEEMEZZE  low value assets that are not 158 176 158 -

short term leases

2022-23  HAHSH 4 Financial Report & K& Hong Kong Baptist University



14, B AR ZBE

Investment in Subsidiaries

RKE
University
(LA T st
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022
B BT > AR (FREL7.1)
Unlisted shares, at cost (Note 17.1) 100 100

LU IR EA KW 2 R RENS © BRI SN2 > B e 2 Mot 2 5 i i o L5739 B MERE 1(d) B i %
) 2 422 Tl W8 2 )OI C 4 B 70 K22 B A A B R A

The following list contains the particulars of the University’s subsidiaries. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated. All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under Note 1(d) and
have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

FAER LR

Proportion of Ownership Interest

BORAN  KBHE KB WEAT

RHAHE esid Y i A i) TREH
Particulars of University’s

[ssued and Effective ~ Held by the Held by Principal

Name of Company Paid-up Capital Interest University Subsidiary Activity

(a) REMPBROL BB : i

Place of incorporation and operation: Hong Kong

HKBU Holdings Limited* Uk ¢!
2 shares 100% 100% - Holding Company

BABT BB A PR 2w+ 100,000/ PO T A5
HKBU Science Consultancy 100,000 shares 100% 100% - Scientific
Company Limited* Research and
Consultancy Services

BEK RSB 7% B A IR A ) ¢ Uk R R B
Institute for the Advancement of 2 shares 100% - 100% Chinese Medicine
Chinese Medicine (IACM) Research and
Limited* Development
ERA R Uk R
Smartlife Limited* 2 shares 100% - 100% Property Holding
BUCM Limited* AR AR AT
Limited by 100% - 100% Chinese Medicine

guarantee Research

FiE A S G b OARA 7 AR R HE % 03 A
Hong Kong Creative Arts Centre Limited by 100% 100% - Promotion and
Limited* guarantee Development of
Creative Atrts

* TR B A B E BT o
Not audited by KPMG.

2022-23  HAHSH 4 Financial Report & K& Hong Kong Baptist University



14, WA w2 B (8)

Investment in Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

HHERZ L%

Proportion of Ownership Interest

RRAS KRB K& WEAR

N WA HRHEG A HH TEEH
Particulars of ~ University’s

Issued and Effective ~ Held by the Held by Principal

Name of Company Paid-up Capital Interest University Subsidiary Activity

(a) aEMbAE BB A (5D

Place of incorporation and operation: Hong Kong (Cont’d)

FER G KRR EAH R A () 2K YN
Hong Kong Baptist University 2 shares 50% 50% - Holding Company

Investment Limited* (Note)

BB RA R 1 TRERER AL KBS
HKBU R&D Licensing Limited* 1 share 100% 100% - Intellectual Properties
Commercialisation

and Trading

(b) wEMbAE R S

Place of incorporation and operation: PRC

i 5 O R BRI R e AR LU

Institute for Research and N/A 100% 100% - Training and Research
Continuing Education*

BK B aT BR (RO A7 R ] * 60047 gale

BU Consultancy (Shenzhen) Limited* $6 million 100% - 100% Consultancy Service

HAR KPR R * (W) 2,5008 I3 B A

Changshu HKBU Technology $25 million 50% - 100% Research and
Company Limited* (Note) Consultancy Service

* T I B AT R FE B P o
Not audited by KPMG.

Note:

BIER B KBGO ] ([ 201 1) 2 50%RBEMF=Tr 1547 o ST > WRIFZZIERIRT 7% ([ %)) - KBRBA ] HHGHHTAZH
W17 > TEHE—JEIR T HET) B H R BB L A o =y M 4 Al (LM 3 FI LB (e P RE 2 T B EZ Wi B oF) - IR B 4
ARG (1 B 18 2 A (R IB AT -

50% of the equity interest of Hong Kong Baptist University Investment Limited (the “Company”) was held by third party. According to the
Subscription & Shareholders’ Agreement (the “Agreement”), the University has a majority of the Company’s board of directors and is solely
empowered to manage and operate the Company. The third party shall neither be entitled to any profit or assets (save and except for interest
in certain assets as defined in the Agreement) nor be liable for any loss or liabilities of the Company.

2022-23  HAHSH 4 Financial Report & K& Hong Kong Baptist University



15, MBS AR Z Bt
Interest in an Associate

) o
Consolidated University
(LA BT oewt)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022
JEAL 2 & E Share of Net Assets - 1,429 _ _

B EE 1 (e) P 5 E 2 WE— W N Al BRI T

The following are particulars of the only associate as defined under Note 1(e):

Ak L%

Proportion of Ownership Interest

CRER AR BRREAN  KEER

BErAaH B REERE  RARRE IRERER  RERRA TEEH
Particulars of

Form of Place of Issued Group’s Held

Business  Incorporation ~ andPaid Up ~ Effective by the
Name of Associate Structure  and Operation Capital Interest University ~ Principal Activity

2023 2022 2023 2022

ARG RO R R A () gl i ARER A kel s
Hong Kong Organic Resource Corporation ~ Hong Kong Limtedby NA 333% NA 333% Organic
Centre Certification Limited* (Note) Guarantee Certifsicati_on
ervice

* T B IG I BT E B T o
Not audited by KPMG.

Wi

Note:

J220234F6 H30 A IFFFIE » KA 1T A B IR A 0af i 7 IRA A ([ 4 Al ) T A Al @ 7 o A Al H 2023434 31 H#EF LA 20
B A Al o

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the University terminated its membership of Hong Kong Organic Resource Centre Certification Limited
(the “Company”). The Company ceased to be an associate of the University with effect from 31 March 2023.

W m O S B B R 2

Summary financial information of the Associate:

€]
K Al i 2 gt R ERAR
Total
(EHT T Comprehensive
(Bpresedinthowsndsof g Kong ol Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Deficit Loss
From 1 July 22 to date of disposal
(REBZZELA-HELERN)
100% 100% 3,105 (608) 2,497 1541 (1,790) (1,790)
AR ERER Group’s Effectve Interest 1,035 (203) 832 847 (597) (597)
022
100% 100% 5,658 (137) 487 5,103 (80) (80)
KEEEHERES  Group's Efective Interes 1,886 (457) 1,429 1,908 27 (27)

Bt 2 ) TG HR M A U K R AR 2 AR e A HRGR PR o L AR R A R
The associate is accounted for using the equity method in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
and considered to be not individually material.
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16. A Hs 2 Rk

Interests in Joint Ventures

A N
Consolidated University
(LA T oest)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022
JE L > BAR{E Unlisted Shares, at cost - - 146,042 146,042
JRE A 2 HE Share of Net Assets 457,164 389,475 - _

B EEL(e) M E 2 & B A E R T

The following are particulars of the joint ventures as defined under Note 1(e):

B Fif et

Z R ZW®E

Proportion of Share of

Voting Right Interest

s BGL BT RS KEBEEE REE#
AEEEL R YE-EiiE e A 1 RKE RKE B ES

Place of  Particulars of The Group The Group

Incorporation Issued and and the and the
Name of Joint Ventures and Operation Paid Up Capital University University ~ Principal Activity
REHEERT P OARA R i 5 fR R A
Baptist Chinese Medicine Research Hong Kong Limited by 50% 50%  Chinese Medicine
Centre Limited* Guarantee Research
SN Sk N PN I AR R %
T 0 R e () 1.5f87C HE
Beijing Normal University-Hong Kong PRC RMB 150 50% 100% Provision of
Baptist University United million Higher Education

International College* (Note)

* T 1 1 F T
Not audited by KPMG.

Wit -
Note:

TEFTRREA AR — 75 i 52 o KB 5 B A2 (R W6 B R 88 ) L T A A5 (R LA ) 75 i 52 gy K A2 (R R B A 42 1) &
TEBIME o BRIEH LIt & B2 BE A & AR T e - R B (M & B P2 g 1 0 A AT ) Hy AL BTAC 152 6 A 52 1 JR 1] 7 A 19 (G AL oy
REALFIIHTA LT RER FIREERC T - KA 4 B BF S B N9 £ A0 (I & 5 B P 2 e L0 6 I A 52 g 1Y 35 S %

(6 LU i B it AA R Bt B 5 b 2 AR A A UG TE P R M - E AT 1 ST AR I KT BB B -

Beijing Normal University — Hong Kong Baptist University United International College (“UIC”) was co-founded by the Beijing Normal
University (“BNU”) and Hong Kong Baptist University (“HKBU”). According to the Collaborative Agreement on the establishment of UIC,
its governing board (which is the governing body of UIC) would have equal number of representatives from BNU and HKBU. As neither
HKBU nor BNU has the ability to control the governing board of UIC, the University has therefore accounted for its investment in UIC as a
Joint venture using the equity accounting method for UIC’s results of operation and net assets. UIC is incorporated in the PRC and is a Private

Non-Corporate Entity with a registered capital of RMB150 million. Its principal activity is provision of higher education.
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16. NEEMM LR (H)
Interests in Joint Ventures (Cont’d)

B M FR SV 5 DR 2 — B R T A5 PR A

Summary Financial Information of Joint Ventures — Group’s Effective Interest:

((éfjijjﬁn?zoumds of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022
I i E G Non-Current Assets 2,301,427 1,904,871
E G E Current Assets 408,761 561,655
W B 4 1 Current Liabilities (1,526,772) (1,550,685)
B E AR Non-Current Liabilities (726,252)  (526,366)
& R Net Assets 457,164 389,475
A Income 1,028,372 952,548
¥ i Expenditure (925,750)  (932,308)
A i 45 Income for the Year 102,622 20,240
42 e 45 Non-controlling interests (991) (1,270)
101,631 18,970
HoAh 2 U 45 Other Comprehensive Income (33,942) (9,418)
2 TH 0 # KRB Total Comprehensive Income 67,689 9,552

BB TR TR A O B T B 2 AR BB R AR o AR T A R R
The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in the Group’s consolidated financial

statements and considered to be not individually material.
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17. &%

Investments
HA KE
Consolidated University
(DL o0
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022
17.1 JEREBHRE Non-Current Investments
RS RAKEE B Financial assets measured at
MEEE amortised cost
R E AR Z#%E  Investment in Subsidiaries
s - - 100 100
(B5E14) (Note 14)
%‘?M}j gl/z}ﬁj 23 Loans to Subsidiaries ~ - 3,750 3,750
(BF5E@)) (Note (1))
- — 3,850 3,850
WA RS AIEZEM  Financial assets
MHEE measured at FVPL
% Unlisted Equity Investment
#ETBASR niisted Equity Investments 6,685 6,946 6,685 6,946
(B 5E()) (Note (ii))
i &% Total Non-C t
e e 3t ot ot von-t-urred 6,685 6946 10,535 10,796
Investments
17.2 REIRE Current Investments
A RAEFE B Financial assets
MHEE measured at FVPL
EIN - E Trading Securities
BEH Debt Securities 1,657,727 1,618,419 1,657,727 1,618,419
il &S Equity Securities 1,172,850 984,694 1,172,850 984,694
Mit4m TR Derivative Fi ial
fIEeMIRAZ erivative Financia 256 4,432 256 4,432
B Instruments Assets
B4 Investment Fund
BREw HVESHEnt FUnds 1,818,038 2325740 1,818,038 2.325.740
(Fft3E17.3) (Note 17.3)
SRR E j Total Fi ial C t Asset:
SRADTTESST  Total Financial Current Assets — \ Coe0) 4933905 4648871 4,933,285
% in Investments
BB Total Investments 4,655,556 4940231 4,659,406 4,944,081
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17.3

(i) ﬂGbZOOr%/b (20224F : 200570 ) 19 B FEAE R FIF8% (20224F : 8% ) 7t B~ MM RAGZIER B4 o F7 50175470 (20224 © 1758 70)
BHIHEFIE ~ JEHEFT R TR (B8 o RIS P T — 4 A

One of the loan amounting to $2.0 million (2022: $2.0 million) bears interest rate at 8% (2022: 8%) per annum, compounded annually, is
unsecured and recoverable on demand. Another loan amounting to 81.75 million (2022: $1.75 million) is interest free, unsecured and
recoverable on demand. Both loans are not expected to be recovered within one year.

(i) KBHFE—RIFTES00TT (20224F - —/RIFHS007C) 2 K2 & BP0 RAFRG - HEREL AIREZ12.5% o % 4] 242
IR FH G & G il FHER -

KBTI KA A JE ([184E0E ]) 12.5% (20224 2 12.5%) fdn (I8 1R EHA) o SEAEREI 199094 18 H it AL 7 75 — [H 15 (R
HIRA A - H AR fCH AT JE A1 5 B PRI I G 7l

The University holds 1 share of $500 (2022: 1 share of $500), representing 12.5% of the share capital of Joint Universities Computer
Centre Limited, a company providing computer services for the UGC-funded Higher Educational Institutions in Hong Kong.

The University has a 12.5% (2022: 12.5%) interest, without investment cost, in Joint University Programmes Admissions System
(“JUPAS”) which was incorporated on 18 September 1990 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to
administer and operate the joint admissions system for and on behalf of each member of the JUPAS.

B HE 4 IR 22

Interest in Investment Funds

KPR TIRRE » e HREGEGARZ F LR ER SO HER L ER
T 5% 55 4 ) 3R PR HL BiL g ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%’I#%mﬁﬁﬁmﬁf%MI SRER

- WREESREE) Y Z A A KR RS

- SRR AN E R B AR Uﬁﬁﬂ%%@%ﬁ§%°

The Group has concluded that the unlisted open-ended investment funds in which it invests, are not

consolidated, meet the definition of structured entities because:

- The voting rights in the funds are not dominant rights in deciding who controls them because the
rights related to administrative tasks only;

- each fund’s activities are restricted by its prospectus; and

- the funds have narrow and well-defined objectives to provide investment opportunities to investors.

TR R R KB R AR A AMRAE S A R 0 45 i T T 2 BT
The table below describes the types of structured entities that the Group and the University does not
consolidate but in which it holds an interest.

AiE R WHER A& RERFIHE BOR B A R 4
Interest Held by the Group
Type of Structure Entity ~ Nature and Purpose and the University
REREE DUAEREE =7 S8 o B o P A P e A A P BOE AR P AT I AL
Investment funds To manage assets on behalf of third party investors and Investments in units issued by
generate fees for the investment managers. the funds.

ST 1o B S 17 19 B B R
These vehicles are financed through the issue of units to
investors.
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17.3 RERESHRER (4)

Interest in Investment Funds (Cont’d)

RELGEA BUE I T 51 8 7 00 5 B e o i
Fhg b A R o

The University holds interest in investment funds investing in the following asset classes. The purpose of
these investment funds is to generate investment income for the University. These investment funds are
managed by professional fund managers.

cELRERSI A KRS RERIREERA - BERE

TR K EE R RN G RBYEA R o SRR e TR R 2 R 2 4 A MR T (-
The table below sets out interest held by the Group and the University in investment funds. The maximum
exposure to loss is the carrying amount of the financial assets held:

SR MR E
Consolidated and University
202346 J130H
30 June 2023
RERE BRI T & MG R LA R EREA
EE¥HE AT i 2 A B
A A R T (A
Investment fund classes: Number of  Total Net Assets Carrying Amount
Investee included in investments at
Funds Fair Value through Statement
Y of Comprehensive IncFJme
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) as Income or Expendlture
i R Equity Fund 2 61,931,302 488,505
EoRLE Hedge Fund 1 62,726,078 730,924
ZULEERES Multi-asset Fund 1 1,876,002 598,609
Ay Total 1,818,038
HARKE
Consolidated and University

20224£6H30H
30 June 2022
BEHEBHRA 8 M A LA B EREA
e ¥HE EN R ONE
3 B BB R 18 B
Investment fund classes: Number of  Total Net Assets Carrying Amount
Investee included in investments at
Funds Fair Value through Statement
e of Comprehensive Income

(Lhis W T oesh) R
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) as Income or Expendlture
g Equity Fund 2 53,659,714 400,208
ESRUIE Hedge Fund 1 82,547,853 691,872
ZrLEEEE Multi-asset Fund 2 4,777,339 835,220
ARG Unconstrained Bond Fund 1 71,712,652 398,440
b Total 2,325,740
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17.3

17.4

(2)

B R WRERS (4)

Interest in Investment Funds (Cont’d)

LLEFTA B8 R e MR B A BE o R M OB A el 5 B A B AT o B 5 S 4R 48 DL _E AT A 2
% o

All the above investment funds are passive investments only. The Group and the University has no control
of, influence on or financial support to any of these funds.

BEEE LR e R R T HEE A5 -

The total net asset values are the best estimations obtained from various fund managers.

LA R B T B £ R ] b B

The Group and the University can redeem units in the above investment funds upon request.

FiE TH

Specific Instruments

B SR & #)

Futures and forward contracts

B Js 0 A KGR B AR E R A H DR E A I R BN — R E e TR B R B
o WB G HMEMEESH - WESAYRNENRRED - HAHRTFRHELLT - @HE4
IR 32 28 o 3 T 10 0 1R B

Futures and forward contracts are commitments either to purchase or sell a designated financial instrument,
currency, commodity or an index at a specified future date for a specified price and may be settled in cash
or another financial asset. Futures contracts have little credit risk because the counterparties are futures
exchanges. Forward contracts result in credit exposure to the counterparties.

B R ) A 7R 32 T 35 AU B R T 5 0 RN T S AR AL o TG BB AR B A B LR A S0 BERE A - f
BOMRE S5 AR I AT RESE B o MLAh > o R (10 OR T8 B 8 A0 2B A0 B BAR B - o B8 1 A B ] i
A BB HIRE o B MBE/NERK 23 RSB R ERARNESEN A
BRI o EIE A —BOKZ B & & Ja o

Futures and forward contracts both result in exposure to market risk based on changes in market prices
relative to contracted amounts. Market risks arise due to the possible movement in foreign currency
exchange rates, indices, and securities’ values underlying these instruments. In addition, because of the
low margin deposits normally required in relation to notional contract sizes, a high degree of leverage
may be typical of a futures or forward trading account. As a result, a relatively small price movement in
an underlying asset of futures or forward contracts may result in substantial losses to the Group. Forward
contracts are generally subject to liquidity risk.

LREBRUBSZLZS TR ROAINENSESE > BREEBINE L&A 5 2 2
S o HESR 24 38 B BN R H BT A 2 A AE (B S AR — R 3R B R ) B R 5 A B R AR B 4 R
& (HHE AR E S MM R R B B T S TR A R -

Notional amounts are the underlying reference amounts to stock exchange indices, equities and foreign
currencies upon which the fair value of the futures, and forward contracts traded by the Group are based.
While notional amounts do not represent the current fair value and are not necessarily indicative of the
future cash flows of the Group’s futures and forward contracts, the underlying price changes in relation
to the variables specified by the notional amounts affect the fair value of these derivative financial
instruments.

KEBBMABALTET - Wor - LEEMETTZ R SMEEH -
The Group and the University have certain foreign currency contracts between USD and AUD, GBP, EUR,
etc.
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17.4 R LHEH)

(b)

18.

Specific Instruments (Cont’d)

1 h

Swap agreements

3430 0l 60 4 ey A 5 I B ) — Ty P A% 1 Rl ST B B i R ST o 1 i s A B 2 B T LB
T Bt e RS 5 BT A RS R A BB BTG TR R o MR FLAS M 7 0 1 o T i 8 D O B A
HR WS F R - SN E - R ERES > RS REHAER > R ER . R RE
B A B — {1 2 e 5 ) L

A swap involves the exchange by the Group with another party of their respective commitments to pay or
receive cash flows. Swap agreements and similar transactions can be individually negotiated and structured
to include exposure to a variety of different types of investments or market factors. Depending on their
structures, swap agreements may increase or decrease the Group's exposure to long-term or short-term
interest rates, foreign currency values, mortgage securities, corporate borrowing rates, or other factors such
as security prices, inflation rates or the volatility of an index or one or more securities.

FE O ~ AT Rk B % &

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits

o) KE
Consolidated University
(BAE RT3
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022
JREE W ¢ Accounts Receivable 156,442 115,529 164,147 126,297
FATIR K Prepayments 35324 32,116 34,878 31,830
K& MR K HEAE 4 Utility and Other Deposits 14,508 11,675 12,132 9,688

206,274 159,320 211,157 167,815

B SR 3 2 M 3 5 — 6 TR I TR T 7 — AR Rl ] o KRR 2 TR AT T — AR R R B B S o KER
6 % 3 5 2 T [ o A R MACRK IR o R AR 9 3 R B AN EOK - Wi 20234F 6 9 30 H f A e AR
A i PR A o

The repayment terms of accounts receivable are within one year and expected to be recovered within one
year. The majority of prepayments will be recognised as expenses within one year. The Group and the
University are satisfied that the receivables are likely to be recoverable. No loss allowance was recognised as

at 30 June 2023 as the credit risk was assessed immaterial.
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18.

19.

20.

(a)

(b)

FEWOR K ~ FEA Wk 3% 4 ()

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits (Cont’d)

JRE MBS g 2 7 > BhE A R A A ARG A B MRHEHR R R AR o (FMFEE31(b))
The amounts due from subsidiaries, an associate and a joint venture are interest-free, unsecured and

repayable on demand. (see Note 31(b))

€ 1K
Term Deposits

£20234F6 H30H - =THIL4408 70 (20224F + 430 8 70) (& WA RN T SUATIE B R B 2 B &k &
Ffs PR AR i B A (20224F ¢ 1,000 5 58) /& BAAE IR T SRAT 15 5 SRAT 15 IR R 40 4y

As at 30 June 2023, three term deposits amounted to $4.4 million (2022: $4.3 million) were pledged to a
bank in lieu of the electricity deposits and letter of credit for the Group, and no term deposit (2022: $10
million) was pledged to a bank for a bank guarantee.

Bl Jo 55 ) Bl 4 S LA B 4 i 22 R

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Cash Flow Information

Ba kGRS
Cash and Cash equivalents comprise:
A N
Consolidated University
(BT Es)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022
~ Cash on Hand and
A T BT 0k
& RERITHAE Balances with Banks 393,487 429,852 345,859 375,135
AR K Short-term Deposits 14,062 124,202 14,062 124,202

407,549 554,054 359,921 499,337

TREKAREEE LREMETHNEEZH N > QR FRE2Y - KAMEHBHNARE
BeEnEs iRkl ERBERERIEARAMETHHEREN AR -

The table below details changes in the Group’s and University’s liabilities from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the cash flow statement as cash flows

from financing activities.
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20. B R B a KB i TR ()

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Cash Flow Information (Cont’d)

(b) (%) (Cont’d)

A

Consolidated

BUR 5K RATE K HEARE At
Government Bank Lease
Loans Loans liabilities Total
(LU T cah (Wfzk27.0 (M3t 27.2) (Bif3E 26)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (Note 27.1) (Note 27.2) (Note 26)
_?37:‘20225157)3 1H As at 1 July 2022 102,950 3,285 93,975 200,210
BT B 2 s Changes from
financing cash flows:
BREHR Repayment of loans - (3,285) - (3,285)
?fﬁ FIE Interest expenses of loans - (39) - (39)
cffEfREZ Capital element of
%;ZI-‘ fg%\ lease rentals paid B N (23.388) (23,388)
EfffEHEZ Interest element of
FEF 0 lease rentals paid N - (2.394) (2.394)
S S il £ 4
MARIZMAEH Toal changes from - (333) (25,782) (29,105)
financing cash flows
O ql 5 Other changes:
HEET Lease modification
A REE Fair value adjustment - - (40,220) (40,220)
NS ERAM  Increase in lease liabilities
EEZHEAEL from entering into new - - 24,612 24,612
1 leases during the year
FE Interest expenses 2,461 38 2,394 4893
2,461 38 (13,214) (10,715)
202346 H30H As at 30 June 2023 105,411 - 54,979 160,390
?’:‘2021@7)3 1H As at 1 July 2021 105,411 24,893 112,858 243,162
MEEE s Changes from
financing cash flows:
R K Repayment of loans - (21,608) - (21,608)
‘Eﬁ?ﬁ] B Interest expenses of loans - (290) - (290)
efrfHEfREsZ Capital element of
EAT lease rentals paid B N (20,280) (20,280)
wER) 7AI‘E -tiik-vd Interest element of
FE A lease rentals paid N - (2.820) (2,820)
i
MRIREZMEAH Total changes from - (21.898) (23,100) (44.998)
financing cash flows
oA 5 Other changes:
N B (E Fair value adjustment (4,751) - - (4,751)
ERE S EMMAM  Increase in lease liabilities
ErZHEAEY from entering into new - - 1397 1397
o leases during the year
Pl E Interest expenses 2,290 290 2,820 5,400
(2,461) 290 4217 2,046
#20224F6 30 H As at 30 June 2022 102,950 3,285 93,975 200,210
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20. B R B KBS E R ()

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Cash Flow Information (Cont’d)

(b) (#) (Cont’d)

2022-23

Ko
University
BURF B RATER MEAR At
Government Bank Lease
Loans Loans liabilities Total
(LW T a3 (Bt 27.1) (W3t 272) (t3k 26)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (Note 27.1) (Note 27.2) (Note 26)
#202247H1H As at 1 July 2022 102,950 3,285 59,062 165,297
METHD 25 Changes from financing
cash flows:
BIBE K Repayment of loans - (3,285) - (3,285)
BHHE Interest expenses on loans - (38) - (38)
ERHEREZ Capital element of
EAM MR lease rentals paid - - (8,194) (8,194)
ENHEREZ Interest element of
LB H 4 lease rentals paid N N (1.692) (1,692)
AT E) Y g
MG E) 2 A TOtff‘l changes from j (3323) (9.886) (13.20)
inancing cash flows
Jofl s Other changes:
g Lease modification
AN RE(E Fair value adjustment - - (40,220) (40,220)
NS EHAM  Increase in lease liabilities
ErEZHEAEZ from entering into new - - 16,047 16,047
1 leases during the year
FE Interest expenses 2,461 38 1,692 4,191
2,461 38 (22,481) (19,982)
202356 H30H As at 30 June 2023 105,411 - 26,695 132,106
#202147H1H Asat 1 July 2021 105411 24,893 64,696 195,000
BT 2 Hs Changes from financing
cash flows:
B B Repayment of loans - (21,608) - (21,608)
BHA B Interest expenses on loans - (290) - (290)
YRR Viikovd Capital element of
EAI MR lease rentals paid - - (5,034 (5,634)
ENHEREZ Interest element of
S0 lease rentals paid - - (1.989) (1,989)
BlG ) s
R B) 2 B TOtfal changes from - (21.898) (1.623) (29.521)
inancing cash flows
Hof s Other changes:
ANRIEE T Fair value adjustment (4,751) - - (4,751)
FIE Interest expenses 2,290 290 1,989 4,569
(2.,461) 290 1,989 (182)
A20224E6 430 H As at 30 June 2022 102,950 3,285 59,062 165,297
AR 45 Financial Report & K& Hong Kong Baptist University




20. B R B a KB i TR ()

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Cash Flow Information (Cont’d)

(c) FHEBIE A%
Total cash outflow for leases
102
HaengRP e F&EMEHNA E—

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases comprise the following:

A KA
Consolidated University
(LA TR
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022
TR Y L .
@;;;L{ﬁ@] Within operating cash flows 1,313 2,071 1,313 1,465
UL
HTERE U .
aa iﬁj L Within financing cash flows 25,782 23,100 9,886 7,623
& i
SRR Lease rentals paid 27,095 25,171 11,199 9,088
21. BIEBA
Deferred Income
e KE
Consolidated University
(LA W T oest)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022
W) FR Current Liabilities

IR AL UM 13 R M 8 3k i
RILTUR UK Deferred Government Subventions ) o0 y0i 303 1612221 1384122

(Bfr&E21.1) and Donations (Note 21.1)
HoAb IR AT I A Other Deferred Income 16,521 13,374 16,521 13,374
1,643,708 1,417,677 1,628,742 1,397,496
Bl N=R Non-Current Liabilities

1 90E B4 3k M AR R i
B 8 BUR 8 S 45 2% Deferred Government Subventions 645,408 949786 645408 949786

(BiF&E21.1) and Donations (Note 21.1)
oAt A Y A Other Deferred Income 10,755 9,740 10,755 9,740
656,163 959,526 656,163 959,526
At Total 2299871 2377203 2,284,905 2,357,022
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22. AHATE
Contract Liabilities
e RKE

Consolidated and
University

20234F 20224

6H30H 6H30H
30 June 30 June

(DL ® T oTst)
(Expressed 1{112 thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022
B [ HoAth Tuition Fees and Others 321,625 300,333

JT A 0 BRI TR I — 45 7 58 3 e 5 A B R B R A 7R
All contract liabilities are expected to be settled or recognised as income within one year or are repayable

on demand.

HWE2023F6H30H IEFERN » AHBEMEEWT -

Movements in contract liabilities during the year ended 30 June 2023 are as follows:

O

(LAY 8T 5051 Consolidated and
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) University
202247 A 1 H &6k Balance as at 1 July 2022 300,333
A JEE TR R TR AT E AR 1Y Increase in contract liabilities as a result of

AR AERR billing in advance 1,232,369
R T 8 4 B A e R P MO Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of

YA SESHEET revenue recognised during the year that was (1,211,077)

MEHE LA ER D included in the contract liabilities
202346 H30 H 45tk Balance as at 30 June 2023 321,625
202147 H 1 H &k Balance as at 1 July 2021 295,841
A TR R TR BT AR Y Increase in contract liabilities as a result of

G ARG billing in advance 1,107,985
K] it BB AT J3E TR TR A U A Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of

TEAF4) R 125 T EHIEET revenue recognised during the year that was (1,103,493)

(IR EECERON-Ki ¢ %A included in the contract liabilities
2022426 30 H # ik Balance as at 30 June 2022 300,333

202246 H30H &4 A BT EE13.003E 0 B MERE F52022-23F A (2021-224F 1% © 2.958/%7C0)

The amount of $300.3 million included in contract liabilities at 30 June 2022 has been recognised as
revenue in 2022-23 (2021-22: $295.8 million).

2022-23  HAHSH 4 Financial Report & K& Hong Kong Baptist University



23.

24.

(a)

1 B 5 P 4 i
Provision for Employee Benefits
Sa K
Consolidated University
(AW Toest)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022
HMRrTE Salaries and Wages 7115 6,529 7,115 6,529
MR Z MR R M AE A Leave and Other Benefits Accruals 151,756 178,300 151,687 178,208
AWM A A Gratuity Provisions and Others 134,204 134,673 133,935 134,490
293,075 319,502 292,737 319,227
JE At Payable
T A R R K Within 1 year or on demand 174,206 192,818 173,928 192,607
R EVEN More than 1 year but less than 2 years 105,932 111,261 105,872 111,197
RUER ZE SR More than 2 years but less than 5 years 12,937 15423 12,937 15,423
118,869 126,684 118,809 126,620
293,075 319,502 292,737 319,227

{2 B 48t 5 A1
O 1 RB A 4t

FWIFE K B1998/ AT &5 (fHR
[AREED > J5—fH b R AR
SEARMIR R B FHH o R20234E6 30
H > H18.97% (20224 : 21.54%) )
RE2WREESHLFH - RS
DAME B T - HOE B A7 O —
B RS WHRKEZ EE R
RHEERMH - ABEEEHHKE
Jo KB AE FE A 1F i it 3os
i

2022-23  HA#5#H Financial Report

24. Employee Retirement Benefits
(a) Defined benefit retirement scheme

The University makes contributions to a defined
benefit retirement scheme named the Hong Kong
Baptist University 1998 Superannuation Fund (“the
Fund”), which covers 18.97% (2022: 21.54%) of the
University’s full-time employees as at 30 June 2023. It
is established under trust with its assets held separately
from those of the University. The Fund is funded
by contributions from the Fund members and the

University in accordance with a trust deed.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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(b)

2022-23

MRAECHEEB R B BR O] - A&
WU AR K & E - M
NREIA ZREAEA - bR 5k
KAGRMRSN > 3% A B E &
BoRETE B 2 BAR & 0T i 2
BEPERAS 8 7 LLSCRY « 2 IR B ik
Bk AMG B A 2 Aa A > AR 4%
ABERREAFE > HARZ
R s iR PRI -l
AREFHER—RERFTBRE
At #l

ONTE A W B AT — U SRS A (2
820234FE6 430 HiEFT - A H %
WE M — ERENEBA R
BF o RKKEBEMELSRER > %
AR AEEEE100% 3 F
KBNS ERENET -

RN RE B RN A
BMEFEHMER - REEREZ AR
St AAE 57,240 7T (2021-224F
J§ 7,780 C) ©

F e Bk 0B Ik <t 3

R [a] IR 4 — TR AR 5 o il 1 A T
G wh B 51 ) B R RS ST B 5 o A A
EntE (R EREsE ) Bk
RE 2 K B 1 F o 4R AR AR 4 5t 3
(908 B 5%z o SRt E A — 18 i g
N7 R N B B A FOR IR 4R
o FHEREFET > BELRH
18 B #5557 Fll 4 18 B AR B A 1Y 5%
3K M A R R 2 M B A
ERRE A3 E T o FF R M A
R A B ST B B A B R B o
TR A B K ) 5 B AR 2 i
HAH 54,1508 70 (2021-224F FF
3,960 7C) °

4B t5 Financial Report

(b)

The Fund is classified as a defined benefit retirement
scheme under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance. Nevertheless, all benefits payable under the
Fund, except for death and total & permanent disability
cases, are based on the accumulated balance of
contributions made by the employee and the University
for that employee during his/her membership with the
Fund. The additional liabilities arising from death and
total & permanent disability benefits, which are based
on final monthly salary of the relevant employee, are
fully covered by insurance arrangements. Therefore, in

substance, the Fund is a defined contribution scheme.

The latest independent actuarial valuation of the Fund
was done as at 30 June 2023 by Towers Watson Hong
Kong Limited, a professional consulting actuary. The
actuarial valuation indicated that the University’s
obligations under the Fund were 100% covered by the

Fund assets held by the trustee.

During the year, contributions to the Fund have been
made according to the recommendation made by the
actuary. Contributions paid by the University to the
Fund for the year amounted to $72.4 million (2021-22:
$77.8 million).

Defined contribution retirement scheme

The University also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) as required under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees not covered by the defined benefit retirement
scheme. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to
the scheme vest immediately. Contributions paid by the
University to the MPF scheme for the year amounted to
$41.5 million (2021-22: $39.6 million).

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University



25. A ek K JE wt IH H

Accounts Payable and Accruals

G4 K
Consolidated University
(DLW T oeat)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022
HHAE Current Liabilities
JE £ 2k L MEFTTEH Accounts Payable and Accruals 314,510 166,868 310,257 162,730
S 8 AT 0 Sundry Creditors 118,943 79,337 118,577 79,043
MeTH % & Sundry Deposits 18,467 18,794 15,842 16,231
JE AT SR AR A B 2UH  Amounts due to Partners on Joint Courses 6,314 10,234 6,314 10,234
B TR R 4 Retention Monies Payable 51,898 36,980 51,898 36,980
YEEHERIE UGC Holding Account 188,549 169,187 188,549 169,187
MESMTHZ Derivative Financial
AfH Instruments Liabilities 6,315 23,634 6,315 23,634
704,996 505,034 697,752 498,039
B A Non-Current Liabilities
S TRRES Retention Monies Payable 26,589 - 26,589 -
26,589 - 26,589 -
At Total 731,585 505,034 724,341 498,039

F2,660 8 0 (2021-22 © ) B HEY) ok TARAR7E 200 > HLR i I Bh & 65 00 JE A5 0 5 7 30 m] 72— 4F R A3 -

Apart from the retention monies payable of $26.6 million (2021-22: Nil), all of the accounts payable

classified under current liabilities are expected to be settled within one year.

26. MIEAE

Lease Liabilities

HEARIMERLNT

The lease liabilities were repayable as follows:

) KE
Consolidated University

(BT )
(Expressed ;E thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022
AR Within 1 year 28,436 20,522 12,661 6,138
WEEN After 1 year but within 2 years 20,677 19,297 10,223 0,403
REIRHSER After 2 years but within 5 years 5,866 29,656 3,811 22,021
KR After 5 years - 24,500 - 24,500

26,543 73,453 14,034 52,924

54,979 93,975 26,695 59,062

2022-23  HA#5#H Financial Report
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27. B#®

Loans

KEMEZBEIFERNT

Details of the Group’s loans are as follows:

27.1 BB

2022-23

Government Loans

EE S ON
Consolidated and University
(LYW Tost)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022
JE At Payable
A TAEA Within 1 year - _
RE2EN After 1 year but within 2 years 6,156 -
NHEIREHSER After 2 years but within 5 years 52,022 40,307
A SFAR After 5 years 47,233 62,643
105,411 102,950
105,411 102,950

A W AT B BOUR (R ARG BURF 1) 4@ AL F 31 —TH R A & e 7 K2
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“the Government™) provided one
long-term loan to the University as follows:

PR T2 VD T A P B — oy 250 P 412 A ) 22 BB A7 AR A A 7 23,6008 TE BE K o B% LR Z R4 i B %
K& B RESRY) o 2% SERUEUE 1200842 A T 104 - X9 #EIR > £ 7E2009%4F 5 H HE A5 BUR HE HE I 22 5K
PIER 104F - KR SRR 201042 17 184F-F R - R A 1% B £20174°2 ] 45
A G IR > AR JETE 4 47 10 JRT I 4% 1 IRR DUAE 568 T U 1A A AR Y 1) 3 SR B4R BURS

42021 5202246 130 H 1L 4B B2 BRBLUM %5 7E W W05 (7] > BIOR 26 T R 22— 4 B R )
B By WA RATAE o JR20234F6 H30H > 2 Fo M (B A AR 1 B A B 1,05 080T (20224

1.03E7T)

A loan of $360.0 million for the construction of a campus in Shek Mun offering associate degree
programmes was secured by the properties on the campus. The loan which was repayable in ten
equal annual installments from February 2008 had been extended for another 10 years in May 2009.
Pursuant to the extension, the outstanding loan balance is repayable in 18 equal annual installments
from February 2010. The loan remained interest-free up to February 2017, after which, the
outstanding loan balance bears an interest charge payable to the Government annually in arrear, at
an interest rate equivalent to the cost of funding to the Government. During the years ended 30 June
2021 and 2022, the University entered into two supplemental agreements with the Government on
a one-off-interest-free deferral of loan repayments for a period of two years and another two years.
As at 30 June 2023, the outstanding loan balance amounted to $105.4 million after the fair value
adjustment (2022: $103.0 million).

AR 45 Financial Report & K& Hong Kong Baptist University



27.2 AT EH

2022-23

Bank Loans
RN
Consolidated and University
(LLis ¥ T o051
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022
JEAT Payable
KA Within 1 year - 3,285
- 3,285
EREY N
Consolidated and University
INHEF T RRAE R % TITHETA TR AE |5
(AT 5 34 Weighted-average Weighted-average
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) effective interest rate 2023 effective interest rate 2022
7 E 8 783 Bank loans at variable rate 2.36 - 1.75 3,285

BWE20234E6 H30H IH4EFE - K2 R d Y (20224F © 7,480 70) A BUS 8R4 T B 2K M4 415 40 76 1

BEHEC IR -

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the mortgages over the University’s land and building (2022:

$74.8 million) in securing the bank loans were released after repayment of the loans.

WE202346 30 H ILAERE - KA SR ERATFIE 2 AR AR S 4 870 (2021-224F FF < 298 70)
During the year ended 30 June 2023, bank interest expense totalling $0.04 million (2021-22: $0.29

million) was incurred.

4B t5 Financial Report
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29.

(a)

2022-23
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HE R 5 0 A A A
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K15 S -
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29. Financial Instruments

(a)

In the normal course of business, the Group is exposed
to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency and
equity price risks associated with financial instruments.
These risks are managed in accordance with the Group's
guidelines and policies, approved by the Finance

Committee under the Council, described as follows:
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk is primarily attributable to its investments in
debt securities and bank deposits. The carrying amounts
of these balances represent the Group’s maximum

exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group mitigates credit risk by investing primarily
in instruments issued by banks or corporations with a
minimum credit rating of “A” as assigned by at least
two international credit rating agencies and performing
periodic monitoring on their credit ratings. Debt
securities held for trading, mostly of investment grades,
are managed by experienced and approved professional
investment managers who manage the portfolios
through a comprehensive monitoring system. The
Group has no concentration of credit risk in view of its
investment in various instruments issued by numerous

banks or corporations.

In respect of bank deposits, internal policies have
also been set up to reduce risk involved, restricting
deposits to be placed with local and overseas financial
institutions with acceptable investment grade credit
ratings so as to limit its exposure to credit risk. The
Group also limits total amount deposited with each

financial institution.
Credit risk associated with loans and other receivables

is immaterial to the Group and loss allowance is

adequately provided for.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University



(b) i B ¥ < A b

R 2 I A 8K o A O B R
TEMBH R R G FK > #HHRA
RSB B G LA H R
IR TR o

AR A2 & 2R

(b)

Contractual maturities of outstanding liabilities

Liquidity risk

The Group has established a system to regularly
monitor current and expected cash demands to ensure
it has sufficient liquid funds to finance its ongoing
working capital requirements of both the short and the
long terms.

TREI T REERNSMAERAER P NRGSOMR - ZFeMAERUSOREESRE (BFEUS
ARG R BRSO I B A AR TR A B H 2RI DR R 22 A AR 1 Je L H B v

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates prevailing at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can

be required to pay:

(DL T ocst)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

e
e

Consolidated

2023

RAORME O BUER O RIER RER
Refie HEK EMER ESER RSER

W i At 12 i fi &

Total Within ~ Morethan ~ More than

contractual 1 year lyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than lessthan ~ More than
Amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
W& Government Loans 105,411 117,428 - 17,384 50,935 49,109
HEARE Lease liabilities 54979 57,084 30,272 21415 5997 -
JEfHR R ERTTEE  Accounts Payable and Accruals 731,585 731,585 704,996 18,236 7,986 367
B fRA B Provision for Employee Benefits 293,075 293,075 174,206 105,932 12,937 -
1,185,050 1,199,772 909,474 162,967 77,855 49,476

(DL T oca)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2022

RORME  RIER RIER O RER
B & REK EMER ESER O RSER

IR (E st R % % fER

Total Within ~ Morethan ~ More than

contractual 1 year lyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than lessthan ~ More than
Amount cash flow demand 2 years S years S years
B & Government Loans 102,950 117,428 - - 51,543 65,385
RITER Bank Loans 3,085 3319 3,319 - - -
HEAR Lease liabilities 93,975 102,891 22,868 21,178 33,174 25,671
JEfSR Z R ERTTEE  Accounts Payable and Accruals 505,034 505,034 505,034 - - -
18 B B A A Provision for Employee Benefits 319,502 319,502 192,318 111,261 15,423 -
1,024,746 1,048,174 724,039 132,439 100,140 91,556

2022-23  HA#5#H Financial Report

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University

114



115

AR ARZ A R (8

Contractual maturities of outstanding liabilities (Cont’d)

TREF TRENEMAGENRSER ARG SANR - 25 ARRUSHARHB SR E (LS A
REEZAE IR - SN2 B AR AR RS H 2 A1) DR OR SR RR N B LA

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date of the University’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates prevailing at the reporting date) and the earliest date the University

can be required to pay:

x-S
University
(BLEEHE T Tat)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023
BHAME O RUER MER SR
R RER B2ER ESER RSER
W gt R &R i feR
Total Within -~ Morethan ~ More than
contractual | year lyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than lessthan ~ More than
Amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
T Government Loans 105411 117,428 - 17,384 50,935 49,109
HEAK Lease liabilities 26,695 28447 13,847 10,705 3,895 -
FERTIR 2 R ESHTEH  Accounts Payable and Accruals 724,341 724,341 697,752 18,236 7,986 367
1§ B AR F B f Provision for Employee Benefits 292,737 292,737 173,928 105,872 12,937
1,149,184 1,162,953 885,527 152,197 75,753 49,476
(AT TR
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2022
BHAME  RMUER O RIER O RER
REnE BEK RMER BRSO RSER
MR (A st R fER fER R
Total Within ~ Morethan ~ More than
contractual 1 year lyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than lessthan ~ More than
Amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
B & Government Loans 102,950 117,428 - - 51,543 65,385
BATHEH Bank Loans 3,285 3319 3319 - - -
MEaR Lease liabilities 59,062 607,104 7,938 8,004 25,491 25,671
TERHIR Z LRI TEH  Accounts Payable and Accruals 498,039 433,124 433,124 - - -
1§ B R fl Provision for Employee Benefits 319,227 319,227 192,607 111,197 15,423

982,563 940202 636988 119201 92,457 91,556

2022-23  HAHSH 4 Financial Report & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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(d)

2022-23
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5 0 T TR ) 2% A B R AR S

202346 H30 H - KB DL
TG~ FE 6 Bt K H A REHEN
G Bl 7 kB OfE A A A M
MEZH D F22.4%(2022 ¢
25.2%) ~ 61.4% (2022 : 62.9%) ~
5.9%(2022 : 4.7%) %10.3%(2022 :
7.2%) ©

20236 H30H - KELIE T
FIT -~ WoT K H A & W EHE R SR
EERABLSREESRAER
B2\ Al 5 22.5% (2022 ¢
25.4%) ~ 61.7% (2022 : 63.3%)
6.0% (2022 : 4.7%) }29.8% (2022 :
6.6%) ©

4B t5 Financial Report

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposure to interest rate risk through
the impact of rate changes on interest-bearing financial
assets and borrowings. The Group manages the
exposure of interest bearing assets through diversifying
its investments into a variety of fixed and floating
rate instruments with various tenures. As for interest-
bearing borrowings, its exposure primarily relates to

floating rate bank loans as detailed in Note 27.2.
Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollar. Nevertheless, the Group has cash and cash
equivalents, held-to-maturity debt securities and trading

securities denominated in various foreign currencies.

In respect of the currency risk of financial assets
denominated in US dollar, the Group considers that
Hong Kong dollar is currently pegged to US dollar
under the linked exchange rate system adopted
by the Government and that it is not necessary to
actively hedge its exposure to US dollar. As to assets
denominated in other currencies, the Group appointed
investment managers use forward foreign exchange

contracts to manage the foreign currency risk exposure.

As at 30 June 2023, the percentages of the Group’s
financial assets or liabilities denominated in HKD,
USD, EURO and other currencies to total financial
assets or liabilities are 22.4% (2022: 25.2%), 61.4%
(2022: 62.9%), 5.9% (2022: 4.7%) and 10.3% (2022:
7.2%), respectively.

As at 30 June 2023, the percentages of the University’s
financial assets or liabilities denominated in HKD,
USD, EURO and other currencies to total financial
assets or liabilities are 22.5% (2022: 25.4%), 61.7%
(2022: 63.3%), 6.0% (2022: 4.7%) and 9.8% (2022:
6.6%), respectively.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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(e)

(f)

2022-23
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(e) Equity pricerisk

(f)

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from its equity investments classified as trading
securities (excluding debt securities). The equity price
risk of these investments are managed by qualified
investment managers using their in-house expert
investment processes and market research capabilities.
The investment managers follow the Group’s investment
guidelines in order to achieve diversification of equity
price risk among the investment portfolios in different
countries and industry segments. The Group also
monitors its risk exposure by carrying out appropriate
assessment on the investment strategies and reviewing

periodic reports from the investment managers.

Fair value

Trading securities (excluding financial instruments with
embedded derivatives) are stated at quoted bid prices
at the reporting date. Debt securities, which are those
securities that the Group has the intention and ability
to hold to maturity, are measured at amortised cost less
impairment losses. The fair values of held-to-maturity
debt securities are estimated as the present values of
future cash flows, discounted at current market interest
rates for similar financial instruments. The fair values
of financial instruments with embedded derivatives
are estimated on a mark-to-market basis of the options
embedded in the securities plus the present value of the
future guaranteed cash flow that is discounted at current
market interest rate. The carrying amounts of short-term
receivables and payables are estimated to approximate
their fair values due to short-term maturities of these
assets and liabilities. The fair value of long-term bank
loans approximates the carrying amount because they
bear interest at floating market interest rates. The
fair values of unlisted investments in subsidiaries, an
associate and joint ventures cannot be reliably estimated

because of a lack of open market for such investments.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University



o R &

(@)

2022-23

L2 o B (s i 4 7
A

i D>

KELEE KB TR
KRB AR F R e
JA T 2 W 51 S K 4 O 8 B
o e I S 1355 20 2 7 (e
7R E R =0 SRR SR
Peg o~ AEER RN R
$1 18T DAl B 1Y B2 75 7T 8
S R E o A B AU
wr

B8 S AEEEUE
Sl B AT R - B EH R A
R[] A A O O
R AR B4R AE -

B AR A
BB ACRT 5 RIURBEFF &5
— B B R A A R A
A AT B B o AT
L5 1Y W T A5 R RE AR TR
Bk -

B ARBEEMATBE
) SRR AT L -

4B t5 Financial Report

Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

The following table presents the fair value
of the Group’s and the University’s financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

Level 1: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

Level 2: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

Level 3: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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The table below analyses financial instruments, and
unlisted equity investments measured at fair values
as at the end of the respective reporting periods on a
recurring basis, by the level in the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised:

O
Consolidated and University
2023
[y s [~ e a1 ==
(LA M T e F—# B8R =4 a
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BH M RMEME  Recurring Fair Value
R Measurements
LA AKE  Unlisted equity investments - - 6,685 6,685
THE®S Trading Securities
&% Debt Securities 47,061 1,610,666 — 1,657,727
i Equity Securities 1,172,850 - - 1,172,850
fix 4@ T E2  Derivative Financial B 256 - 256
BE Instruments Assets
BEEE Investment Funds 1,087,114 - 730,924 1,818,038
fix4m T H2  Derivative Financial
Afh Instruments Liabilities (1,856) (4,459) - (6,315)
Ha st Total 2,305,169 1,606,463 737,609 4,649,241
2022
Y — 85— 2
(BT 2R Ha o =% At
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Level 1 Level 2 LCVCI 3 Total
BHEMARMEE  Recurring Fair Value
i Measurements
F LM AR E  Unlisted equity investments - - 6,946 6,946
ATHEE® S Trading Securities
i3 Debt Securities 216,978 1,401,441 — 1,618,419
Ji 5 Equity Securities 984,694 - - 984,694
it 4T A2  Derivative Financial
EE Instruments Assets 1,417 3,015 B 4,432
BEES Investment Funds 1,633,868 - 691,872 2,325,740
fiE4MITAY  Derivative Financial
=K Instruments Liabilities B (23,634) - (23,634)
y Total 2,836,957 1,380,822 698,818 4,916,597

R FE2023F6 30 H &20224F6 A
30 H B4R &0 o fE (B % 2 T
W 7 A R -

2022-23  HA#5#H Financial Report

During the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, there
were no transfers between each level of fair value

hierarchy.
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The fair value of the securities under Level 2 is
determined by reference to the prices at the reporting
date provided by the investment managers or banks
and have been translated using the appropriate foreign

currency rates at the end of the reporting period.

The fair value of the investment funds at Level 3
represent the investment funds managed by the fund
managers. Such investment funds are stated with
reference to the net asset value of these investments. A
valuation report with analysis of changes in fair value
measurement is prepared by the investment managers at

each annual reporting date.

The fair value of unlisted equity investments in Level
3 is determined based on the attributable net assets
values. The significant unobservable input includes the
attributable net asset value and the fair value increases

with the increase in the attributable net asset values.

The movements during the period in the balance of

these Level 3 fair value measurement are as follows:

EE N ON
Consolidated and University
(Lhits T ocst)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022
LT RALE R ERE

Unlisted Equity Investments
and Investment Funds

TH1H Z 2~ B fE Fair value as at 1 July 698,818 680,923
TE4EEH Net unrealised gain recognised in
A TH i i R TE R Statement of Comprehensive Income for 38,791 17,895

il m 2 REB UL assets held at the end of the reporting date

6A30HZ Al

Fair value as at 30 June 737,609 698,818

2022-23  HA#5#H Financial Report
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(i)

(9)

(i)

(iii)

2022-23
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(i)

(9)

(i)

(iii)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at

other than fair value

Held-to-maturity Debt Securities are held by a
subsidiary of the University and has been disposed
during the year ended 30 June 2022.

Sensitivity analysis
Interest rate risk

As at 30 June 2023, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group’s surplus and decreased/
increased the Group’s total funds by approximately
$27.7 million (2022: approximately $115.3 million
under a general increase/decrease of 150 basis points in
interest rates).

Foreign currency risk

As at 30 June 2023, if there was a 5% strengthening/
weakening in the relevant foreign currencies against
the Hong Kong dollar, it would have increased/
decreased the Group’s and the University’s surplus by
approximately $126.7 million (2022: approximately
$80.6 million).

Equity price risk

As at 30 June 2023, if the equity price of its equity
investments classified as trading securities had been
10% (2022: 5%) higher/lower, with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s surplus would have been
increased/decreased by $175 million (2022: $89
million) as a result of the changes in fair value of the

listed equity securities.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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30. Capital Management

The University is a government subvented education
institution established in Hong Kong under Hong Kong
Baptist University Ordinance and is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements, except as
stated below. The University’s capital mainly consists
of surplus accumulated since its inception, donations,
capital grants from the Government, Government
loans and commercial loans. The objectives of the

University’s capital management are:

- to ensure that the University will be able to
continue as a going concern so that it can continue
to provide whole person tertiary education and
related services to the community;

- to support stable operation of the University; and

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the

future development of the University.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the University’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital
were largely unchanged. The University mainly relies
on capital grants from the Government for campus
expansion, improvements, and redevelopment relating
to UGC-funded activities. Donations, operation surplus
and commercial loans are used to supplement any
shortfall in such projects, premises acquisition and
campus expansion and redevelopment relating to non-
UGC-funded activities as well as other activities of
a development nature. The spending of government
grants is governed by the UGC Notes on Procedures
and related grant conditions and the spending of non-
Government funds is subject to internal guidelines and
policies. The University implements a comprehensive
system to manage its funds under clear investment
guidelines and strategies formulated with the assistance
of an investment consultant. For the surplus funds of an
endowment nature, the University sets annual spending
limits so as to preserve the long-term purchasing power
of the funds. Professional investment managers are
appointed to manage funds of a long-term nature while
those of a shorter term nature are managed by the
University under approved guidelines.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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(2)
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31. Related Parties Transactions

(a)

All transactions relating to purchases of goods and
services and capital projects involving organisations,
in which whether a member of the University Council
or the University’s key management personnel may
have an interest or not, are conducted during the
normal course of business and in accordance with
the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures. Donations received from
members of the University Council, key management
personnel, or organisations controlled or significantly
influenced by them were approved in accordance with

University’s regulations.

During the year, the University entered into the
following transactions with its related parties in the

ordinary course of business:

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022
HHRERRES R E £ Donations received from the University Council
TEMANR - RZ KB members, the University’s key management 228 280
WA NP 2 o R personnel and companies controlled or
% TR EN significantly influenced by them
TERH B A R A AT L%« Administration fee, consultancy fee,
R ~ A5 B R N R 2 management fee and licence fee received 393 995
from subsidiaries
A SR AT ICEUR IR B 2 Services fee from a joint venture 9,807 63,316
In] o} > ) S A s Services fee paid to subsidiaries 7,303 5,618
2022-23  HAHSH 4 Financial Report & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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(b) R20234F6H30H > WEAF - &
R UV - UNCIVNON- T0F F e
B

(LAt W T oERt)

31. Related Parties Transactions (Cont’d)

(b) As at 30 June 2023, the amounts due from subsidiaries,
a joint venture and an associate to the University
amounted to:

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022
WF J&§ 2 W Subsidiaries 7,890 11,501
G-t 1 Joint Venture 11,643 16,635
L /NG| Associate - 980

19,533 29,116

JES B A W)~ A8 A R SO 8 W) Z MR AR Ay SR - BRI R ORI -
The amount due from subsidiaries, a joint venture, an associate are unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand.

DAL Fr A IR SRR S 2 )~ A ) R R R B A AR SO K~ TR A A (BT L) o
All the above amounts due from subsidiaries, a joint venture and an associate are included in Accounts
Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits (Note 18).

(c) REMFEEMAB*MEMES
The total compensation to key management personnel* of the University was:
((éj)‘(;%rfszji:ﬁl]jousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022
AR & Salaries 50,015 51,290
IR B AR ) Short-term Employee Benefits 9,882 7,753
IR B = A Long-term Employee Benefits 7,671 9,426

67,568 68,469
* LTEEWANSOFREERGHAE -
Key management personnel included members of the Senior Executive Committee.
2022-23  HAHSH 4 Financial Report & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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32,

33.

(a)

FEHIE H R 32. Capital Commitments
202346 H30H > R EC BRI B As at 30 June 2023, outstanding capital commitments
B RN AR RE . BRm not yet provided for in the financial statements are as
T follows:
KON

Consolidated and University
(BLiHET T3
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022
B4 Contracted for 807,848 1,577,325
eI IR S 30 Authorised but not yet contracted for 343,326 251,336

1,151,174 1,828,661

B

Taxation

AT AR R AR R A BT RLA

Income Tax in the Statement of Comprehensive Income of the Group represents:

A
Consolidated
(LAY T oest)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022
7 JEE A TE I ] Credit for the year:
—HWEAGEH — Hong Kong Profits Tax - 4

KB T HAT T PR A O B JB5 2 W) T M IR AL 2 25 25 s > IR A s CBE B Ik )) (BB 112%) SR 88 Mk =
AT BLEER % -
The University and some of its subsidiaries limited by guarantee are approved charitable institutions

exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112).

R £ A 35 S R JB 2 ) T A o R4S B DURE R B A o AV IR 4 R BL16.5% (2021-224F ¢
16.5%) BB A FT R A s ML o RS2 B HR A vl I 48 11 O JB 2 0 05 4 o 0 B A 50 B A B £ 1) LA B P A o
R o AR B IR DR IR0 B o 0 I 22 2 7 A 15 BB

Some of the subsidiaries of the Group are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax. The provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2021-22: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits of these subsidiaries
for the year. Subsidiaries of the Group with operations in the PRC are subject to the appropriate tax laws
and regulations in the PRC. Tax payable in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position represents

provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax.

2022-23  HAHSH 4 Financial Report & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Taxation (Cont’d)

(b) 7R AFJEE T A5 L B S LR L A e B 4 BE 6  SPMR A R

Reconciliation between tax expense and surplus before taxation at applicable tax rates:

126

Gt
Consolidated

(LB BEF TRt
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2023 2022
BRBERT 2R (B R) Surplus/(deficit) before taxation 611,006 (402,204)
WA EEmBAT AR, Notional tax on surplus/(deficit) before

(W548) BB RETE R taxation, calculated at rates applicable to 100,209 (66,849)

BiIA surplus in the jurisdictions concerned
REANBLBH S 2 BB 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 580,858 555,671
WA Z B2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (681,187) (489,079)
R THE R 1 B e 4R Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 767 789
I LART R P REGRAY AT HE I Utilisation of tax losses previously not 647) (532)

() B 75 Nl 48 recognised
T ] DA AF B 4 Over provision in prior years - 4)
G AR Income tax credit - @)

20236 H30 H K% 20224F6 H30 H » KB [EHE K K B0 2k 5 2 RSB 5 18 K BT I I 2 B K R TR

FY AR S e A o S AR AR

As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, there were no material unrecognised deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities in respect of accumulated tax losses arising from temporary difference of the Group and the

University.
2022-23  HA#5#H Financial Report
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34.

(a)

(b)

35.

2022-23

S b A B

K R 8 L A A AR KR B I
AP BRI 1Y 5 A o A R
FACH B RN EE KA
W 1A (A T R RO A B A ) B
BEIR T

By - WAS e bt il 7 45

K% [ A B A A AR E B
FEE Y JEE S B At ) DA R B
1 S 8 BT 0 7 8 RN A B AT AR
W R BB -

EMTH

R R R R T
1 4 il T ELAE M 00 A (A0 5] B 2 51
B EE2914 o

FRER

20236 H30H » KELLFE i E
I Ay % s N> SR A A #4,000 & T
(20224F : 4,000 & 70) MERATIEMR »
ABATE B~ 808 RAEFF i
R B o B B 1 AR o L AEAR
748 DR I v 5 5 B #5 A IR 2 H
FE T 4 A S A I A AT R HE A
= EHEGEBEREST > TR
bR 2 B (K87 W BUR & T 3R e
e FERE T > KB 1 R AT 1R
i BLRAT I O A T A A ] T o

R4 B 7 i R 9 T ok > KBRS K
3 o B e YL 0 TR A NS R
B B PR IR B R > P R BB AL
R IVSRERULIPN S JitiE
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34.

(a)

(b)

35.

Significant Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

Estimates and judgements are reviewed by the management
of the Group annually based on experience and changes
in external environment. The estimates and judgements
that have a significant impact on the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities are discussed below:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The estimated useful lives and residual values of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment for determining
the annual depreciation charge are reviewed annually
by the management making reference to historical data
of similar assets.

Financial instruments

The estimates and judgements made by the management
in respect of the financial instruments held by the
Group are discussed in Note 29.

Contingent Liability

As at 30 June 2023, there is a bank guarantee of $40.0
million (2022: $40.0 million) in favour of the Hong
Kong Government in respect of the performance of
managing, operating and maintaining the Chinese
medicine hospital constructed by the Hong Kong
Government (the “bank guarantee”). The bank
guarantee will expire on the fifth anniversary of the
service commencement date of the Chinese medicine
hospital or the date on which all outstanding rights and
obligations, and claims and liabilities have actually
been carried out, completed and discharged (as
confirmed by the Hong Kong Government in writing).
In this connection, the University agreed to reimburse
the bank for any payments made in connection with the
bank guarantee.

Based on the agreement with the Hong Kong
Government, the University will be responsible for the
staff cost of the Chinese medicine hospital during the
pre-commissioning period and the staff cost of the core
management team of the Chinese medicine hospital in
15 years’ time following the service commencement of
the Chinese medicine hospital.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University



36. & £2023F6H30H ILFED
REA (EL W AR R 2 4B 5T~ B RT
) R e B 2 W] RE S A

WENEMBHHREREAL -
& R AT € B 2 TEAE M R ARk
AR  HET R KR R > BT
HI R A 8 22023 4E6 7 30 H IE4E
BB HREP A AHEREA
WHrF R AR EEBARZH

36. Impact of Amendments, New Standards
and Interpretations Issued But Not Yet
Effective for the Year Ended 30 June 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended
standards, which are not yet effective for the year ended
30 June 2023 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

H o

A5 B s 12 B iR 2
B A K

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

il BRI L75E  REAAH 202341 1H

HKEFRS 17, Insurance contracts 1 January 2023

B HENS 1% (BiTAR)  HEHEZ I - BETHB B T 2023%F1H1H

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: 1 January 2023
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

FHE a1 9E BTTA) » HBHEZ BT RET BT R 2023417 1H
HHBYFIR - (Fl ELHE - GFt BRZE Bk

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements and HKFRS Practice 1 January 2023
Statement 2, making materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting policies

TGt NSt (BaTA) » BBk - Gat i ZH R - 2023417 1H
Bil i €7

Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and 1 January 2023
errors: Definition of accounting estimates

FEEFHEAE 1258 ETTA) > FIEH - SR E— X G EL BERR K 20234F1H1H
F b2 BRI

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities 1 January 2023
arising from a single transaction

F g at s 198 (BRTA) > Wi R i A & 20244E 17 1H

Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current liabilities with covenants 1 January 2024

T s B st M BB 109 BV w28 K (B FTA) > REH LA & 5 ¥
QA G BN EE &

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sales or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

AR B 8 B I A 5 B R T A
TA T U TS [ 2 S B o B E R
1k AKREEEG A > R
JH 7 26 1 B AS KT i K I S
BREBHMBREELERLE -

2022-23  HA#5#H Financial Report

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group’s and the University’s
financial statements.

& K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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37. AWl A B g bR R

& — M 41K T B ) B i
E EETECE]

202246 - A W R I8 EUR T &
(2022 4F 18 i S 3R AR5 B3 a1 (41K 85
LHE) ERT) e ) (TEFT Wil 1) >
3 J A O A 08 L A
Ba (e ) sH#ET 28 HlH%
HEF D H A A R B 2 R IR
Ba((RRE ] KB 8Tz %
A COURET S oh il 1) - BURKERR =
3T B % 2025 4E5 H 1 H (T3
PEH W) AR - Kk > BUNINE
e s — TE A B R LR BT
LA R

Hodr > — LI 3 R o AR A B
AR U B A5 8 H o
P o < I K (M B AR O F B 2
il ~ B2 AR AR 2 0 B R
AT A 2t 15 e D A7 B AR B IR B
FHZ R E AT fifE B 7
I FS AL B 0 32 (o R T A
AT A B A e R O
F 390 AL (R B MBS A 2 R
T34k > TR F A AL AR B A 2
T Mot 1R B B8 I H AT 2
F 0 B A R H 2 R s A 0
B o
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37. New HKICPA Guidance on the Accounting

Implications of the Abolition of the MPF-
LSP Offsetting Mechanism

In June 2022, the Government of the Hong Kong
SAR (the “Government”) gazetted the Hong Kong
Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”), which will
eventually abolish the statutory right of an employer to
reduce its long service payment (“LSP”) and severance
payment payable to a Hong Kong employee by drawing
on its mandatory contributions to the mandatory
provident fund (“MPF”) scheme (also known as
the “offsetting mechanism”). The Government has
subsequently announced that the Amendment Ordinance
will come into effect from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition
Date”). Separately, the Government is also expected to
introduce a subsidy scheme to assist employers after the

abolition of the offsetting mechanism.

Among other things, once the abolition of the offsetting
mechanism takes effect, an employer can no longer use
any of the accrued benefits derived from its mandatory
MPF contributions (irrespective of the contributions
made before, on or after the Transition Date) to reduce
the LSP in respect of an employee’s service from
the Transition Date. However, where an employee’s
employment commenced before the Transition Date,
the employer can continue to use the above accrued
benefits to reduce the LSP in respect of the employee’s
service up to that date; in addition, the LSP in respect of
the service before the Transition Date will be calculated
based on the employee’s monthly salary immediately
before the Transition Date and the years of service up

to that date.
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& — MBI B ) B
BHHR G (8)
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37. New HKICPA Guidance on the Accounting

Implications of the Abolition of the MPF-
LSP Offsetting Mechanism (Cont’d)

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong” that provides
guidance on the accounting considerations relating
to the offsetting mechanism and the abolition of the
mechanism. In particular, the guidance indicates
that entities may account for the accrued benefits
derived from its mandatory MPF contributions that are
expected to be used to reduce the LSP payable to an
employee as deemed contributions by that employee
towards the LSP. However, applying this approach,
upon the enactment of the Amendment Ordinance
in June 2022, it is no longer permissible to apply the
practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19
and recognise such deemed contributions as reduction
of current service cost in the period the related service
is rendered, and any impact from ceasing to apply
the practical expedient is recognised as a catch-up
adjustment in profit or loss with a corresponding
adjustment to the LSP liability during the year ended 30
June 2023.

In these financial statements and in prior periods,
consistent with the HKICPA guidance the Group has
been accounting for the accrued benefits derived from
its mandatory MPF contributions that are expected
to be used to reduce the LSP payable to an employee
as deemed employee contributions towards the LSP.
However, the Group has been applying the above-
mentioned practical expedient.

The Group is in the process of assessing the
implications of this new guidance on the above
accounting policies and has decided to change those
accounting policies to conform with the guidance.
The management has commenced the processes on
implementing the change including additional data
collection and impact assessment. However, the impact
of the change is not reasonably estimable at the time
this financial report is authorised for issue, as the Group
has yet to fully complete its assessment of the impact of
the HKICPA guidance. The Group expects to adopt this
guidance with retrospective application in its annual
financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2024.
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